
William Murdock, AICP 
Executive Director 

Chris Amorose Groomes 
Chair 

Michelle Crandall 
Vice Chair 

Ben Kessler     
Secretary 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 
COLUMBUS, OH 43215 

BOARD ROOM 

Thursday, December 5, 2024 
1:30 p.m. 

Remote Option 
To join by video and see any screen sharing, click on “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” below. You 
do not need to have Microsoft Teams for the link to work.  

Join Microsoft Teams Meeting 
Meeting ID: 253 692 422 494  
Passcode: Ny6oQ9qc  

To participate by phone, use the conference call information below. 
+1 614-362-3056 Columbus
(888) 596-2819 (Toll-free)
Phone conference ID: 624 550 928#

AGENDA 

1. Welcome – Ben Kessler, Acting Chair

2. Consent Agenda

• Approval of November 7, 2024 minutes

3. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, Executive Director

4. Proposed Resolution 17-24: “Acceptance of the fiscal budget and fund account
appropriations for the operation of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission for
2025” – William Murdock Executive Director and Shawn Hufstedler, Chief Operating Officer

5. Committee Updates

• Benefits & Compensation Committee – Joe Stefanov, Chair

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ODQ0ZDJiZWYtODIyNC00M2JmLWI4ODMtMzk4NjE0NjJlMzhm%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22d225c0aa-f4a0-4925-bc81-eaff87943970%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2290194b29-9096-438a-9d8e-b061540a6761%22%7d
tel:+16143623056,,624550928
tel:8885962819,,624550928


  

 

Executive Committee Agenda 
December 5, 2024  
Page 2 

o Proposed Resolution EC-03-24: “Setting compensation guidelines and limits 
for the 2025 compensation year” – Shawn Hufstedler, Chief Operating Officer 

• Bylaws Committee – Haley Lupton, Chair 

• Sustainability Advisory Committee – Jessica Kuenzli, Chief Regional Planning 
Officer & Senior Director of Planning 
o Proposed Resolution 21-24: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into 

an agreement with District 17 Natural Resources Assistance Council (NRAC) 
to serve as the liaison for the Clean Ohio Green Space Conservation 
Program”  

• Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization – Parag Agrawal, Chief Mobility & 
Infrastructure Officer & Senior Director of Programming 

• Transportation Policy Committee – Parag Agrawal, Chief Mobility & Infrastructure 
Officer & Senior Director of Programming 

• Regional Policy Roundtable – Joseph Garrity, Senior Director of Government Affairs 
& Community Relations 
o Proposed Resolution 18-24: “Adoption of MORPC’s 2025-2026 Public Policy 

Agenda” 
 
6. Proposed Resolution 19-24: “Accepting the Village of Alexandria as a member of the 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC)” – William Murdock, Executive 
Director 

 
7. Proposed Resolution 20-24: “Accepting the City of Marion as a member of the Mid-

Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC)” – William Murdock, Executive Director 
 
8. Proposed Resolution EC-05-24: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into 

agreements with the Franklin County Board of Commissioners to administer the 
Joint Columbus and Franklin County Housing Advisory Board for the period of 
January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025” – Jessica Kuenzli, Chief Regional Planning 
Officer & Senior Director of Planning  

 
9. Proposed Resolution 22-24: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into 

agreements for July 1, 2023 through December 31, 2025, with the Franklin County 
Board of Commissioners for a home repair program” – Robert Williams, Residential 
Services Senior Director 

 
10. Draft Commission Agenda 
 
11. Other Business 
 
12. Executive Session – ORC Section 121.22 (G) (1) 

Purpose: to consider the appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline, promotion, 
demotion, or compensation of a public employee or official, or the investigation of charges 



  

 

Executive Committee Agenda 
December 5, 2024  
Page 3 

or complaints against a public employee, official, licensee, or regulated individual, unless 
the public employee, official, licensee, or regulated individual requests a public hearing. 
 

 
PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org 

IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 
 

The next Executive Committee Meeting is 
Thursday, February 6, 2025 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
PARKING AND TRANSIT: When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a 
MORPC visitor space or in a space marked with a yellow “M”. Handicapped parking is available 
at the side of MORPC’s building. Electric vehicle charging stations are available for MORPC 
guests. 
 
Indoor bike parking is available for MORPC guests. 
 
MORPC is accessible by COTA BUS. The closest bus stop to MORPC is S. Front Street & W. 
Blenkner St. Buses that accommodate this stop are the Number 61 - Grove City, the Number 5 
- West 5th Ave. /Refugee, and the Number 8 - Karl/S. High/Parsons. MORPC is accessible by 
COTA BUS. The closest bus stop to MORPC southbound is High Street & W. Blenkner Street. 
Buses that accommodate this stop are the 5 - West 5th Ave./Refugee, and the 8 - Karl/S. 
High/Parsons. The closest stop to MORPC northbound is High Street & E. Hoster Street. Buses 
that accommodate this stop are the 5 - West 5th Avenue/Refugee and the 8 - Karl/S. 
High/Parsons. Accessible from the Courthouse stop by a quick walk are COTA lines 1, 2, 4, and 
CMAX. 
 



 
Members Attending in Person 
LaGrieta Acheampong 
Chris Amorose Groomes 
James Jewell 

Ben Kessler 
Kris Long 
Haley Lupton 

Matt Starr

 
Members Attending Remotely 
Laurie Jadwin Joe Stefanov 
 
MORPC Staff Attending in Person 
Parag Agrawal 
Steve Armstrong 
Matika Garrison 
Ralonda Hampton 

Shawn Hufstedler 
Jessica Kuenzli 
Kelsey Matson 
William Murdock 

Shari Saunders 
Robert Williams

 
MORPC Staff Attending Remotely 
Joe Garrity
 
Guests Attending Remotely 
Paull Jeffers, Environmental Design Group
 
Welcome – Ben Kessler 
Acting Chair Ben Kessler called the meeting to order at 1:31 p.m.  
 
Consent Agenda 
Matt Starr made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, second by Chris Amorose Groomes; motion 
passed. 
 
Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock 
William Murdock presented the Executive Director’s Report. Mr. Murdock thanked those who ran for 
office and/or had issues on their ballots. No matter how it went, MORPC appreciates your service to 
your community. 
 
Mr. Murdock shared that Village of Somerset Mayor and MORPC member Tom Johnson passed away. 
He believed in connecting Perry County and Somerset to our organization and will be missed. 
 
To commemorate Veterans’ Day, MORPC’s Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Committee arranged for 
guided tours of the National Veterans’ Memorial and Museum for MORPC staff on November 20, 10 
a.m. or November 21, 3 p.m. Mr. Murdock extended the invitation to committee members. Kris Long 
shared there is a day long festival at the Museum on November 10 in place of the Veterans’ Day 
parade. 
 
MORPC had the opportunity to talk about passenger rail at the recent Central Ohio Mayors & Managers 
Meeting at the Governor’s House. The event allowed local mayors and managers to share local policy 
initiatives with the governor. 
 
The Bylaws Committee will be convening in January for a general clean up and to add new committees. 
Haley Lupton chairs the committee. Let Mr. Murdock or Ms. Lupton know if you are interested in serving 
on the committee. 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 

  
Date: November 7, 2024 
Time: 1:30 p.m. 

Location: MORPC Board Room 

https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/11-07-2024-ED-Report.pdf


Executive Committee Minutes 

November 7, 2024 

Page 2 

 
The Memphis Tennessee Regional Council fell apart a few years ago and are in the process of building 
a new one. They invited Mr. Murdock to come talk to them about MORPC. 
 
Mr. Murdock noted we typically have a members services update today. Eileen Leuby is out of town on 
a well-deserved vacation. Mr. Murdock will incorporate a few items into his report today. The summer 
intern program is open for communities to apply for interns.  
 
Mr. Murdock congratulated COTA on the passage of the LinkUS ballot issue with 56 percent of the 
vote. It raised the sales tax for transit from one-half percent to one percent. It means more transit types 
and more funding for trails and sidewalks. MORPC is coordinating the trails and sidewalk piece. James 
Jewell and Megan O’Callaghan are co-chairs of the Trails and Sidewalks Committee. Mr. Murdock 
thanked members for their support. For those outside the COTA service area, this means your rural 
systems will have better transit to connect into. 
 
Nearly 700 people attended the October 29 Summit on Sustainability. The morning plenary session 
featured regional council leaders from across the country. The keynote session with Jeff Speck was 
great and the four Pecha Kucha presenters brought down the house. Fifteen breakout sessions were 
offered throughout the day-long event. Mr. Murdock thanked the MORPC Team and the Executive 
Committee for their support. We are reaching the physical capacity for holding the Summit at the 
current location. Part of the conversation moving forward is a possible change in venue and adding 
more breakout sessions. 
 
The 208 Process Review Committee is meeting monthly. They started narrowing down their 
recommendations such as defining the service area, committee structure, dispute resolution process, 
etc. Recommendations are expected to come before the Executive Committee in early 2025. 
 
The Regional Water Study is ongoing. The results are expected in early 2025. Because of the intensity 
of the development issues, Licking County was broken out and will be finished December 2024. 
 
Upcoming Events: 

• STEPZ (Strategic Training on Effective Planning and Zoning) Workshop – November 19, 8 a.m., 
MORPC 

• Pre-Commission Luncheon with Steve Steinour, Chairman, President & CEO of Huntington 
Bank – November 14, 12 p.m., MORPC 

 
MORPC continues to work with universities to offer all our MORPC members and their employees 
discounts. Mr. Murdock announced two new partnerships: 

• Capital University is offering discounts and/or scholarships to employees and their dependent 
children. 

• Columbus College of Art and Design is offering discounts for employees on their MPS in UX 
Design or Retail Design. 

 
Mr. Murdock announced that Derrick Clay was named the new CEO of the Greater Columbus Chamber 
of Commerce. 
 
Quarterly Financial Statements – Shawn Hufstedler 
Shawn Hufstedler presented the Quarterly Financial Report 2024 Q3 highlighting: 

https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/11-07-2024-Finance-Report-Presentation.pdf


Executive Committee Minutes 

November 7, 2024 

Page 3 

 

• Budget vs Expenses – We are at 53 percent of our budget. We tend to under spend as we 
incorporate some potential funding that does not always come to fruition, and we also estimate 
on the high side of for production.  

• Operating Reserve – Under goal due primarily to two large outstanding receivables totaling 
around $1.5 million. We anticipate both getting caught up over the next few months. 

• Gains/Losses – Net loss year-to-date due to revenue received in the prior year, but expenses 
showing in the current year. We continue to struggle with the need for more weatherization 
clients. Due to the work of Residential Services, we are able to minimize the impact through 
creative revenue generation opportunities.  

• Fringe and indirect rates are both favorable. 

• Impact of Government Account Standards Board mandates on financial statements – Net 
position would be approximately $5.6 million greater or a positive balance of $4,279,863. 

• Member Dues – Over budget. Expected to come back in line by the end of the year. 

• We are finding that as we diversify our funding, it takes longer to figure out how to draw down 
money from the new source. The Finance Team is evaluating how we are closing our financial 
statements to see if we can issue invoices faster. 

• The Finance Team went through a process improvement procedure this year for accounts 
payable that made a quick impact on the internal flow.  

 
The full September 2024 Financial Report is available here. 
 
Benefits & Compensation Committee – Joe Stefanov 
Joe Stefanov reported the Benefits & Compensation Committee met in October and discussed raises 
for 2025 and pay grade changes. These will be brought to the Executive Committee in December. The 
Benefits & Compensation Committee includes representatives from COTA, Dublin, Columbus, New 
Albany, Franklin County, Delaware County, Union County, and MORPC. The committee also discussed 
the potential impact of the recent changes in the overtime labor law as well as health care premium 
changes and plan updates. MORPC is part of the Franklin County health care plan and will have no 
premium increases for 2025. 
 
Regional Policy Roundtable – Joe Garrity  
Joe Garrity thanked members for their leadership and gave the legislative update highlighting: 

• Election results 
o MORPC lost two key allies in Senator Sherrod Brown and State Senator Stephanie Kunze. 
o U.S. Senate appointment by Gov. DeWine to replace Senator Vance; will need to win a 

special election in 2026. 
o New Central Ohio Representative Dave Taylor. 

• Federal lame duck priorities include a continuing resolution, and the National Defense 
Authorization Act. 

• Ohio Public Works Commission update. 

• House Bill 3 includes Technical Assistance Fund to help spend funds on zoning and increase 
housing access. 

• Appropriation in transportation budget to help with passenger rail. 

• Ohio General Assembly update. 

 
Mr. Garrity reported the Regional Policy Roundtable will present the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda 
next month for adoption. 
 
 

https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/Q3-Memo-with-Report_10.29.24___SLA-revised.pdf


Executive Committee Minutes 

November 7, 2024 

Page 4 

 
Transportation Policy Committee – Parag Agrawal 
Parag Agrawal gave an update on the infrastructure funding and technical assistance programs. 

• MORPC manages the FTA Section 5310 funding program that enhances the mobility of senior 
citizens and persons with disabilities. We received 21 applications seeking approximately $3.1 
million for the $1.7 million available this round. The review committee meets November 13. 
Recommendations will be brought to this committee. 

• MORPC provides technical assistance to enhance active transportation to MPO member 
communities. We received four applications for 2025. The review committee is meeting to 
identify the two communities receiving assistance in 2025. 

• MORPC has approximately $50 million from different federal grant programs to help member 
communities with various transportation investments. This year we received 20 applications 
seeking $167 million. The Attributable Funds Committee will determine funding for the 
communities later this year. Recommendations will be brought to this committee. 

 
MORPC works with member communities and state and federal partners to attract funding to Central 
Ohio. Earlier this year MORPC applied for a $1.5 million RAISE grant for Trail Towns in the Nation’s 
Heartland. While the application was not funded, we did receive the Certificate of Merit status, making 
the application eligible for a separate round of funding in the next cycle. 
 
MORPC is applying for a $1 million U.S. EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant to support assessment, 
clean up and reuse of brownfield sites. 
 
U.S. DOT’s Regional Infrastructure Accelerators (RIA) Program provides approximately $10 million with 
no match to communities who want to invest in regional infrastructure and are geared towards 
innovative financing and implementation of investments in transportation. The application deadline is 
January 9, 2025. 
 
The next Passenger Rail Committee meeting is November 12 and includes presentations from Amtrak 
and the Ohio Rail Development Commission (ORDC). Ten leaders from Central Ohio went to Fort 
Wayne on October 31 to meet with the city’s mayor. 
 
Team Members will give a presentation on Safe Streets at next week’s Transportation Policy 
Committee meeting. 
 
Sustainability Advisory Committee – Jessica Kuenzli 
Jessica Kuenzli reminded members that MORPC provides administrative and liaison support to the 
Natural Resources Assistance Council (NRAC) District 3. NRAC oversees the Clean Ohio funding 
routed through the Ohio Public Works Commission. NRAC approached MORPC about potentially 
serving in the same role for District 17. District 3 covers Franklin County. District 17 includes Fairfield, 
Licking, Knox, Morrow, Pickaway, and Delaware Counties. If the committee agrees with moving 
forward, Ms. Kuenzli will bring a resolution forward next month. MORPC will receive $15,000 for 
administering the program. MORPC also assesses a one percent voluntary fee. No new personnel are 
needed. The Executive Committee agreed to move forward by consensus. 
 
Proposed Resolution 16-24: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into agreements with 
the Federal highway Administration (FHWA) regarding recently awarded Charging and Fueling 
Infrastructure (CFI) Program funding and enter into related subcontracts” – Jessica Kuenzli 
This resolution allows us to enter into contract with the $15 million grant we received from federal 
highways. The CFI program is focused on expanding the EV charging network throughout Central Ohio. 



Executive Committee Minutes 

November 7, 2024 

Page 5 

 
 
Discussion led to a suggestion to create a database of EV chargers in Central Ohio that will list who 
has them, where they are, what is the usage, etc. 
 
Kris Long made a motion to accept Resolution 16-24, second by James Jewell; motion passed.  
 
Draft Commission Agenda 
The Executive Committee reviewed the draft November 14, 2024 Commission Meeting Agenda. 
 
Other Business 
William Murdock announced the Columbus Metropolitan Club is having a special session on population 
and economic strength. Panelists include Padmini Roy-Dixon, Kenny McDonald, Matt Martin, and Doug 
Buchanan. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 2:46 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Ben Kessler, Secretary 
Executive Committee 



��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�E=FF8GG8=A�7?FP?OG��QR5+6� S<BTA�UKNGL?9C?O�E<8?N�;V?OBL8A@�;NN8J?O��WX4Y6� Z=M?FP?O�[\]�[̂[_��àbcYd46� DO=V=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�ef:[_g�hXii,jk01i,�.l�km,�lnoi0p�q32r,k�012�l312�0ii.31k�0jj/.j/n0kn.1o�l./�km,�.j,/0kn.1�.l�km,�+n2s5mn.�R,rn.10p�tp011n1r�d.--noon.1�l./�uvuwx��y<8G�O?G=CKL8=A�?GLBPC8G<?G�BA�B@?AJz�=V?OBL8A@�PK9@?L�=N�{|̂]_|}]|~\�N=O�JBC?A9BO�z?BO�[̂[~�BA9�G?LG�BKL<=O8�?9�BVVO=VO8BL8=A�C?M?CG�N=O�L<?�B@?AJz�=V?OBL8A@�BA9�JBV8LBC�?IV?A98LKO?G�PK9@?L�C8A?�8L?FG���y<?�NKCC�[̂[~�=V?OBL8A@�PK9@?L�9=JKF?AL�T8L<�J=FVBO8G=AG�L=�L<?�[̂[_�PK9@?L�BA9�BA�?I?JKL8M?�GKFFBOz�<8@<C8@<L8A@��?z�?C?F?ALG�=N�L<?�[̂[~�PK9@?L�8G�BLLBJ<?9���y<?�VO=V=G?9�LOBAGN?OG�BO?�BG�N=CC=TGg���yOBAGN?O�{e]̂̂ ]̂̂̂ �̂=KL�=N�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�>?G?OM?�L=�L<?�FB8A�=V?OBL8A@�BJJ=KAL������y<8G�LOBAGN?O�T8CC�=ACz�=JJKO]�8N�A??9?9]�8A�BJJ=O9BAJ?�T8L<�L<?�=V?OBL8A@�O?G?OM?�V=C8Jz������yOBAGN?O�{e]̂̂ ]̂̂̂ �̂8AL=�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�>?G?OM?�L=�LOBAGN?O��8N�A??9?9��F?FP?O�9K?G�NKA98A@�L=�8AJO?BG?�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�>?G?OM?�BA9�O?LKOA�L<?�NKA9G�LOBAGN?OO?9�BG�A=L?9�BP=M?]�8N�BVVC8JBPC?����yOBAGN?O�{~̂]̂̂ �̂=KL�=N�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�>?G?OM?�L=�L<?�FB8A�=V?OBL8A@�BJJ=KAL������y<8G�LOBAGN?O�BKL<=O8�BL8=A�8G�N=O�L<?�FBAB@?F?AL�O?G?OM?]�8N�A??9?9]�L=�NKA9�A?T�8AL?A9?9�O?M?AK?:@?A?OBL8A@�BJL8M8Lz�BA9�=O�O?CBL8M?Cz�F8A=O�G<=OLB@?G�8A�NKA98A@�N=O�J?OLB8A�VO=@OBFG������yOBAGN?O�{ê ]̂̂̂ �̂=KL�=N�L<?�FB8A�=V?OBL8A@�BJJ=KAL�L=�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�>?G?OM?������y<8G�BKL<=O8�BL8=A�8G�N=O�L<?�VKOV=G?�=N�LOBAGN?OO8A@�V=G8L8M?�A?L�8AJ=F?�NO=F�J?OLB8A�VO=@OBF�@O=KVG�L=�P?�8AM?GL?9�8A�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�BA9�7BAB@?F?AL�>?G?OM?G�8A�BJJ=O9BAJ?�T8L<�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�>?G?OM?�D=C8Jz������LLBJ<F?ALg�>?G=CKL8=A�ef:[_��



���������	
����

�����������
��
���
������
�� !��
�� 
��� 
�������
���"��"�������
��"
���
���"�����
��
���
#� $%���
&�!�����
'������!
(�))������
��"
*+*,-

./���0�1
234
567789986:
;::<;==>
;?6@29
234
;A4:B>
C<?A42
;:?
D<:?
;BB6<:2
;@@E6@E8;286:9F
;:?

./���0�1
234
D8:;:B4
24;71
G6EH8:A
G823
234
4I4B<28J4
?8E4B26E
;:?
;==
K��L5
?4@;E274:291
3;9
D6E7<=;24?
234
�M�N
O<?A42
;:?
D<:?
;BB6<:2
;@@E6@E8;286:9F
;:?

./���0�1
234
�I4B<28J4
567782244
3;9
E4J84G4?
234
�M�N
O<?A42
;:?
D<:?
;BB6<:2
;@@E6@E8;286:9
;:?
E4B6774:?9
;?6@286:F
:6G
234E4D6E41

O�
��
�����P�Q
OR
�/�
#ST$%US%
&VWS%X�Y
'Y�XXSXW
(%##SZZS%X[

�4B286:
�\
 �3;2
234
6@4E;28:A
C<?A42
;22;B34?
;9
@;A4
]
6D
234
�M�N
O<?A42
89
;?6@24?\

�4B286:
�\
 �3;2
234
D8:;:B4
?8E4B26E
89
34E4C>
;<236E8̂4?
;:?
?8E4B24?
26
;?6@2
234
�M�N
D<:?
;@@E6@E8;286:9
;9
936G:
C4=6G
;:?
2E;:9D4E
D<:?9
<@
26
234
;76<:29
=8924?
8:
234
2E;:9D4E
;@@E6@E8;286:
=8:49
C4=6G\

 

 

 _"��̀���
 

 
_�� 
 %"!a
 (����b
 

 *+*,
X�a
 X�a
 %�c���
 

 ���"��"�������


 

 (� �
 �������
d����
 e� !��
fM�g
 �gN�M
 N�MMMM
 �;=;E849
 hi1gNg1M�f
fM�g
 �gN�M
 N�NMMM
 jE8:A4
O4:4D829
 hg1��N1ii�
fM�g
 �gN�M
 N�MMMM
 �4EJ8B49
k
53;EA49
;:?
K;24E8;=9
 h�]1�]�1���
fM�g
 �gN�M
 NgfNMM
 O6;E?
K47C4E
�487C<E9474:29
 hgM1MMM
fM�g
 �gN�M
 NN�MMM
 lE;:29
26
	6:LE6D82
�EA;:8;̂286:9
;:?
l6J4E:74:29
 h�1gig1M�M
fM�g
 �gN�M
 N�MMMM
 5;@82;=
6<2=;>
m
j<E:82<E41
�n<8@74:2
k
�4;9436=?
�7@E6J474:29
 hf�1NMM


 

 

 d%d�Y
 op+q*,+qrs,

 
 
 
 

 
 
 d"�����"
��"
%��"����!
&���"t�
fM��
 ��N�M
 N�ggMM
 �E;:9D4E
0@@E6@E8;286:
m
�<2
 h�1MMM1MMM
fM�g
 �gN�M
 ��ggMM
 �E;:9D4E
0@@E6@E8;286:
m
�:
 h�1MMM1MMM

 
 
 
 
fM�g
 �gN�M
 N�ggMM
 �E;:9D4E
0@@E6@E8;286:

�<2
 h�1MMM1MMM
fM��
 ��N�M
 ��ggMM
 �E;:9D4E
0@@E6@E8;286:

�:
 h�1MMM1MMM

 
 
 

 
 
 d"�����"
��"
#���!�)���
&���"t�
fM��
 ��N�M
 N�ggMM
 �E;:9D4E
0@@E6@E8;286:
m
�<2
 hNM1MMM




���������	
����
����
�

 ����
 �����
 ������
 ������ �
!""�#"�$�%$#�
&
'�
 (��)���

 
 
 
����
 �����
 ������
 ������ �
!""�#"�$�%$#�
&
*+%
 (���)���
���,
 �,���
 ������
 ������ �
!""�#"�$�%$#�
&
'�
 (���)���

 
 
 
 

- .%$#�
�/
 �0�%
%0 
 1 .+%$2 
3$� .%#�
$�
�+%0#�$4 3
%#
%�5 
�+.0
#%0 �
�.%$#�
��3
 1 .+% 
��3
3 6$2 �
�+.0
#%0 �
3#.+7 �%�
��)
�.%$�8
9$%0
%0 
�32$. 
#�
6 8�6
.#+�� 6)
0 
�0�66
3  7
� . ����:
��3
�""�#"�$�% 
%#
.���:
#+%
%0 
$�% �%
#�
%0$�
� �#6+%$#�/

- .%$#�
�/
 �0�%
%0 
�$���. 
3$� .%#�
$�
�+%0#�$4 3
��3
3$� .% 3
%#
7�5 
��:
� . ����:
�66#;.�%$#�
.0��8 �
9$%0$�
�
�$�86 
�+�3
#�
%0 
�""�#"�$�%$#��
+"
%#
�
" �. �%
#�
%0 
%#%�6
�""�#"�$�%$#��
%#
�..#77#3�% 
#" ��%$�8
��3
�..#+�%$�8
� <+$� 7 �%�
#�
%0 
=#77$��$#�/

- .%$#�
�/

�0�%
%0$�
=#77$��$#�
�$�3�
��3
3 % �7$� �
%0�%
�66
�#�7�6
3 6$> ��%$#��
��3
�.;%$#��
#�
%0$�
=#77$��$#�
.#�. ��$�8
��3
� 6�%$�8
%#
%0 
�3#"%$#�
#�
%0$�
� �#6+;%$#�
9 � 
%�5 �
$�
#" �
7  %$�8�
#�
%0$�
=#77$��$#�/


 















































































=0�$�
!7#�#� 
?�##7 �)
=0�$�

 
 
 
 
 
 @ABCDEAD
FGHADIJK
LKJIIAIH
MD@@ANNADI


O�� .%$2 
3�% P
 Q��+��:
�)
,�,�
-+>7$%% 3
>:P
 -0�9�
R+��% 36 �)
=0$ �
*" ��%$�8
*��$. �
S� "�� 3
>:P
 -% 2 
!�7�%�#�8)
T$���. 
U$� .%#�
!+%0#�$%:P
 
 *0$#
V 2$� 3
=#3 
- .%$#�
���/,�
T#�
�.%$#�
3�% P
 U . 7> �
�,)
,�,�
!%%�.07 �%P

 ,�,�
W+38 %






MID-OHIO REGIONAL 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
2025 BUDGET



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ........................................................................... 1 
OPERATING BUDGET & SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES ... 6 
DETAIL OF MEMBER DUES..................................................................... 7 
SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS ........................................................ 8 
APPENDIX 

DETAIL SOURCES BY DEPARTMENT .........................................9-10 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING SOURCES ............................................. 11 
SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTORS ............................................. 12 
INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION BUDGET ....................................... 13 

  TABLE OF CONTENTS 



   

1 
 

2025 Operating and Capital Budget 

 
 

 
 
The MORPC 2025 operating budget is $30,436,359 an increase of $6,806,941 (28.8%) from 
2024’s budget of $23,629,418.   
 
Looking toward 2025, MORPC’s finances are strong. The agency will continue to make 
investments strategically, while also prioritizing the preservation of cash to ensure the long-term 
sustainability of its operations. With relatively high interest rates persisting, uncertainty 
continues around the national economy. However, MORPC remains optimistic – economic 
development projects in the region continue to grow, large amounts of federal funding are 
available to the region, and nationwide inflation is on the decline. This budget seeks to continue 
a balanced approach of using resources responsibly, while still targeting investments that will 
improve services for members and the region.  
 
MORPC will continue to aggressively pursue grants and contracts that will benefit its members. 
While some increases have been budgeted, a mid-year budget amendment will be completed if 
needed to adjust for new funding and programs as we move through 2025.  
 
This budget focuses on MORPC’s Strategic Framework Goals, which include: 

 Drive Investment; 
 Pay It Forward; 
 Create an Environment for Prosperity; and 
 Build Value for Our Members. 

 
MORPC is pursuing a number of initiatives to continue to advance these goals, which include 
the following:  
 
Drive Investment 

 To attract investment to the region and create opportunities for members and all of 
Central Ohio, MORPC will continue to devote more resources toward efforts in the areas 
of economic development and regional investment. This includes continued funding in 
the following positions: Economic Development Director, Regional Investment Officer, 
Economic Development Planner, Grants Coordinator, and Grants Intern. The MORPC 
team continues to implement the Economic Development District that was recognized by 
United States Economic Development Administration (USEDA) in late 2023. 

 MORPC will continue to support planning efforts around major projects, such as the Intel 
Project in Licking County. MORPC is budgeting funding received from ODOT to support 
this planning work. 

 MORPC continues to develop the Regional Water Plan and implement the process for 
208 clean water quality management planning. 

 Through LinkUS, MORPC will continue to invest in smart development to connect 
communities and create opportunities for a more equitable and sustainable region for 
everyone by helping to address growth, affordability, and opportunity gaps in Central 
Ohio.  In collaboration with the City of Columbus, Central Ohio Transit Authority, and the 
Franklin County Board of Commissioners, LinkUS will bring more Bus Rapid Transit to 
the region, create more walkable communities, expand access to opportunities, and 
more. 



2 

2025 Operating and Capital Budget 

 MORPC continues to work on multiple rail projects and stood up the Central Ohio
Passenger Rail Committee to advise and help steer passenger rail planning and
ancillary work in Central Ohio. This includes work on the collaborative effort called
Midwest Connect to connect Chicago, Fort Wayne, IN, Columbus, OH and Pittsburgh
with passenger rail service, as well as continued work on the 3C+D corridor to connect
Cleveland, Columbus, Dayton and Cincinnati.

Pay It Forward 
 MORPC will continue to enhance public service leadership and build capacity in Central

Ohio communities by training local elected officials and appointed leaders; provide
extensive member-focused forums, briefings, and special events; and connect young
leaders to public service through MORPC’s Local Government Internship Program.
MORPC continues to expand our partnership with colleges and universities in the region
to offer educational discounts to employees of all member agencies.

Create an Environment for Prosperity 
 MORPC will continue to deliver essential tools for the region to get better as it grows

bigger, including expanded research, visual tools, and proactive briefings; continued
expertise to tackle the housing challenge; and programs and tools to inform and drive
sustainability and mobility efforts.

 MORPC will implement two large electric vehicle (EV) charging projects in 2025,
including the largest grant ever received by the agency. These programs are designed to
support the maintenance and expansion of electric vehicle charging to improve access
to clean transportation and facilitate the transition to sustainable energy solutions.

Build Value for Our Members 
 In response to the challenges of growth and staffing in many of the region's local

governments, MORPC continues to develop the recently added resources for planning
assistance. This includes a staffing pool of planners available for short-term assignments
with MORPC members to assist with planning and development staffing needs. MORPC
also developed a task order consultant program to streamline the process for local
governments to engage pre-negotiated services from a network of planning and
development firms and consultants.

 MORPC will be an excellent steward of regional resources. In this budget, MORPC is
using $405,215 in funding to bolster its operating reserve, which will further strengthen
MORPC’s finances, improve financial resiliency, and support MORPC’s 60-day or more
operating reserve balance target.

 MORPC will continue to be a strong resource and collaborative forum for Central Ohio
communities. MORPC members will continue to have access to the newly renovated
space and will benefit from virtual meeting tools.

 MORPC will continue to provide a strong return on investment (ROI) for all local
government members.

The details below show some changing initiatives and new programs. Here are some notable 
highlights for 2025: 
MPO& CORPO (Jointly Funded Projects) 

 The Federal Highway Administration funds decreased to $3,393,968 in 2025 from
$4,016,119 in 2024.  This decrease was due to more carry-over funds available in 2024



3 

2025 Operating and Capital Budget 

than in 2025, primarily the result of significant turnover in 2023. This timing difference is 
expected to be balanced out by non-jointly funded project work in 2025. 

Programming and Planning 

 The increase in programming funding for 2025 can be attributed to several key factors.
FTA 5310 Enhanced Mobility Program has seen significant growth, with more funding
available in 2025 compared to 2024. This increase is primarily due to a resolution of
nationwide supply chain issues that had delayed vehicle purchases for subrecipients in
previous years. With these issues now resolved, more funds are expected to be utilized
in the upcoming year.

 In 2025, more funding is being secured through various programs, such as the Safe
Streets for All program, which provides resources for transportation safety and
infrastructure improvements.

 Funds for the newly established Economic Development District are expected to
contribute to the increased funding for programming.

 Various transportation projects include projected funding for rail and the RAISE for trail
towns.

 Planning is budgeted to increase due to 2 new grants related to Electrical Vehicle
charging.  The Charging Fueling Infrastructure (CFI) Grant will add funding of
$3,429,785 and the EV Charger Reliability and Accessibility Accelerator Program will
add an additional $1,917,611.  The projects will repair/replace, maintain, and expand EV
chargers throughout the Central Ohio region.

Residential Services 

 The 2025 budget for Residential Services (RS) shows a slight reduction in funding with
an overall reduction in Weatherization and an increase in Home Repair.  Specifically, the
HWAP budget will decrease from $4,382,032 in 2024 to $4,028,831 in 2025.  The
Columbia Gas budget also decreases from $2,095,620 in 2024 to $1,363,840 in 2025.
These decreases are due to a combination of right-sizing the budgets for contractor
costs and a decrease in eligible applicants reaching the programs.  However, there are
still efforts underway to boost efficiency and revenue generation in MORPC’s
Weatherization programs, including additional installation of funded measures by
MORPC team members.  In addition, MORPC is increasing its focus on broader home
repair and renovation efforts, including radon mitigation and lead safe programs. The
service area for these initiatives is expanding to include the City of Westerville, with
plans to continue broadening outreach to other communities.  The Home Repair budget
has received a significant increase of $847,635 raising funding from $2,102,901 in 2024
to $2,950,535 in 2025. This boost will help MORPC continue providing critical support to
families in need.

The Detailed Revenue by Department schedule, which is in the Appendix, shows additional 
detail on program fluctuations from year to year. 



4 

2025 Operating and Capital Budget 

This budget also makes investments in staffing that will increase program focused positions that 
will support the priority programs of the agency. The budget also shows a similar level of 
turnover/soft funding assumption associated with staffing based on recent turnover trends, 
which is in line with the expectations of other organizations due to the current employment 
climate. 

The fringe rate will rise to 59% of wages in 2025, which is slightly increased from 57.5% in 
2024. Additionally, the indirect cost allocation rate will lower to 61.0% of direct labor (i.e., wages 
and fringe), which was 62.5% in 2024. The net impact of these two modest changes will result in 
a near net zero change to the direct programs. 

Total 2025 sources of $30,436,359 are greater than the 2024 sources budget of $23,629,418 
with the large increases for the EV programs and additional fluctuations in some funding 
sources and programs as is typical for MORPC. 

Revenue from federal sources is budgeted to increase to $21,861,781 (or by 44%) from 
$15,210,779. Federal sources account for 72% of the operating budget. The increase can 
primarily be attributed to the Charging and Fueling Infrastructure Grant (CFI) and the Electric 
Vehicle Charger Reliability and Accessibility Accelerator Program (EV Charger) funds.  

Local and other budgeted revenue is projected to increase by 13% to $4,013,175 in 2025 from 
$3,099,673 in 2024. Housing Local Contracts is the largest increase primarily as a result of the 
new City of Westerville Home Repair program with other modest increases in Planning and 
Data related funding areas. 

Salaries and fringe benefits are budgeted to increase from $10,983,466 to $11,478,913 (or 
4.51%) as a result of new positions, across the board wage increases, some promotions/wage 
adjustments, and fringe benefit cost increases. Staff was budgeted at 95.3 FTEs in the 2024 
budget and is budgeted at 96.3 FTEs in 2025.  

MORPC will increase the amount of funding it is setting aside for its operating reserve to 
$405,215 to further strengthen MORPC’s finances, improve financial resiliency, and support 
MORPC’s 60-day or more operating reserve balance target. 

Services & Charges are higher primarily due to more being budgeted in 2025 for FTA 5310 
Enhanced Mobility Program subgrant funds. 

Subcontractors are expected to increase significantly from $6,996,347 in 2024 to $11,473,672 
due to the addition of several programs that will need to utilize subcontractors including the EV 
Charger, CFI, Lead Safe, and City of Westerville Home Repair. 

SOURCES (Funding Sources – Page 11) 

USES (Page 6) 



5 

2025 Operating and Capital Budget 

Depreciation and Amortization increased from $189,684 in 2024 to $795,559 in 2025 due to the 
implementation of a new GASB pronouncement that records amortization differently for lease 
payments in prior year budgets. The depreciation amount included within the 2025 budget (of 
approximately $186,000) is consistent with the 2024 budget amount for depreciation alone.  

The capital expenditures budget for 2025 is $97,500 down from the 2024 expense of $120,000.  
The 2025 expense is attributable to the planned purchase of a new van for Residential Services 
weatherization and other various equipment for IT and other areas. 

The total 2025 member dues budget is $1,666,760 (a 5.7% increase compared to 2024). Dues 
funding is provided by MORPC members. Revenue is increasing due to the addition of new 
members, an increase in population, and a Commission-approved increase to member dues. Of 
the 2025 budgeted amount: $405,215 of the dues are being set aside to bolster MORPC’s 
operating reserve in support of the Commission-approved 60-day operating reserve target 
(similar to the $400,000 in 2024), $21,009 is being used to cover CORPO transportation 
matching requirements (MPO transportation matching requirements are being met using other 
local funds), and $187,599 is for building lease expenses. 

Services to Members makes up the majority of the dues budget with $900,893 budgeted for 
work for members such as executive director services, proactive legislation, public policy work, 
member services coordination, and other services (including regional investment work). Member 
Dues represent approximately 5.5% of the operating sources budget. Dues are provided by 82 
participating local government members (counties, townships, municipalities, and villages) at 
annual rates set by the Commission. Finally, associate members, which includes eight 
regionally-oriented units of local government, are currently participating as members of MORPC 
at an annual rate of $1,250 each.   

The appropriations are similar to the agency operating expenses, coming in at $30,250,675 for 
2025.  

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES (Page 6) 

USE OF MEMBER DUES (Page 7) 

APPROPRIATIONS (Page 8) 



OPERATING BUDGET

SOURCES
2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

PROGRAMMING AND PLANNING
Jointly Funded Projects (MPO & CORPO) $5,020,149 $4,242,460 ($777,689)
Programming - Transportation & Infrastructure Development $5,510,619 $7,304,974 $1,794,355
Planning $1,960,613 $7,079,610 $5,118,997
Planning - Data and Mapping $336,457 $454,060 $117,603

SUBTOTAL PLANNING, DATA AND TRANSPORTATION $12,827,838 $19,081,103 $6,253,265

RESIDENTIAL SERVICES

Residential Energy Efficiency $6,537,783 $5,524,683 ($1,013,100)
Housing & Rehab Services $2,102,901 $2,950,535 $847,634
SUBTOTAL RESIDENTIAL SERVICES $8,640,684 $8,475,218 ($165,466)

MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT $1,153,431 $1,240,536 $87,105

OPERATING RESERVE $400,000 $405,215 $5,215

OTHER $607,465 $1,234,287 $626,822
TOTAL SOURCES $23,629,418 $30,436,359 $6,806,941
Detail Budgets provided on pages 9-10

USES
2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Salaries and Fringe Benefits $10,983,466 $11,478,913 $495,447
Materials and Supplies $307,517 $183,107 ($124,410)
Services - Subcontractors $6,996,347 $11,473,672 $4,477,325
Services & Charges $4,752,401 $6,099,887 $1,347,486
Additions to Operating Reserve $400,000 $405,216 $5,216
Depreciation and Amortization $189,684 $795,559 $605,875

TOTAL USES $23,629,418 $30,436,359 $6,806,940

NET CHANGE $0 $0 $0

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

SOURCES
2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Cash * $120,000 $97,500 ($22,500)

TOTAL SOURCES $120,000 $97,500 ($22,500)

USES 
2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Equipment, Vehicles & Other Assets $120,000 $97,500 ($22,500)
Furniture & Leasehold Improvements $0 $0 $0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $120,000 $97,500 ($22,500)
* -  Represents cash available and recoverable via grants

6



DETAIL OF MEMBER DUES

SOURCES: 2024 BUDGET
2025 BUDGET INCREASE/ 

DECREASE

RPC Member Dues ($.36 - 2024, $.38 - 2025) $948,124 $1,018,394 $70,270
MPO Member Dues ($.210 - 2024, $.215 - 2025) $410,818 $424,892 $14,074
Associate Members $10,000 $10,000 $0
Building ($.07 - 2024, $.07 - 2025) $183,036 $187,599 $4,563
CORPO Local Match ($.105 - 2024, $.110 - 2025) $24,338 $25,875 $1,537

TOTAL SOURCES $1,576,316 $1,666,760 $90,444

USES:
Transportation Match / Operating Reserve (MPO & CORPO) $422,888 $426,224 $3,336

SUBTOTAL LOCAL MATCH $422,888 $426,224 $3,336
Executive Director Services to Members $44,384 $46,172 $1,788
Proactive Legislative Activity $212,698 $229,684 $16,986
Public Policy & Multi-jurisdictional $265,265 $292,978 $27,713
Member Service Coordination $214,356 $213,648 ($708)
Annual Salary Survey $8,646 $9,070 $424
Mid-Ohio Finance Administrators (MOFA) $2,020 $2,085 $65
Other Services to Members $104,436 $107,255 $2,819

SUBTOTAL FOR SERVICES TO MEMBERS $851,805 $900,893 $49,088
Executive Director Development $43,767 $45,531 $1,764
Executive Director & Staff Travel & Registration $7,400 $14,670 $7,270
Board Travel & Registration $10,595 $12,195 $1,600
Other Development/Business Development $2,149 $4,279 $2,130

SUBTOTAL DEVELOPMENT FUND $63,911 $76,675 $12,764
Diversity, Equity & Inclusion $49,830 $50,877 $1,047
Miscellaneous $3,300 $5,919 $2,619
Contingency & Cost Overruns $1,546 $18,573 $17,027

SUBTOTAL OTHER $54,676 $75,369 $20,693
Building Lease Expense $183,036 $187,599 $4,563
SUBTOTAL BUILDING $183,036 $187,599 $4,563

TOTAL USES OF MEMBER PER-CAPITA FEES $1,576,316 $1,666,760 $90,444

7



ACCT # ACCOUNT TITLES 2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

SALARIES 
Salaries - Regular $7,870,061 $8,342,349 $472,288
Salaries - PTO and Sick Leave Payout $62,301 $10,680 ($51,621)

510000 SUBTOTAL SALARIES $7,932,362 $8,353,029 $420,667
FRINGE BENEFITS

PERS - Regular $1,072,532 $1,124,298 $51,766
PERS - PTO and Sick Leave Payout $10,679 $10,679 $0

SUBTOTAL PERS $1,083,211 $1,134,977 $51,766
Medicare Tax $111,084 $106,045 ($5,039)
Unemployment Compensation $17,100 $17,100 $0
Workers Compensation $93,949 $90,821 ($3,128)
Fringe Benefits Other (includes group $1,745,761 $1,776,941 $31,180
medical, dental, vision, life and disability)

515000 SUBTOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS $3,051,105 $3,125,884 $74,779
$10,983,466 $11,478,913 $495,446

MATERIALS, SERVICES & CHARGES 
Materials & Supplies $307,517 $183,107 ($124,410)
Services & Charges:

Subcontractors $6,996,347 $11,473,672 $4,477,325
Services and Charges $3,976,436 $5,784,857 $1,808,421
Additions to Operation Reserves $400,000 $405,215 $5,215
Rent and Utilities $704,163 $693,455 ($10,708)
Travel $71,802 $133,955 $62,153

520000

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & CHARGES & 
MATERIALS $12,456,265 $18,674,261 $6,217,996

$23,439,731 $30,153,175 $6,713,443
Capital Expenditures

Equipment, Vehicles & Other Assets $120,000 $97,500 ($22,500)
Leasehold Improvements $0 $0 $0

540000 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $120,000 $97,500 ($22,500)

$23,559,731 $30,250,675 $6,690,943TOTAL

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS

8



APPENDIX



DETAIL SOURCES BY DEPARTMENT

2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

MPO & CORPO (Jointly Funded Projects)
Federal Highway Administration (MPO & CORPO) $4,016,119 $3,393,968 ($622,151)
Ohio Department of Transportation (MPO & CORPO) $502,015 $424,246 ($77,769)
MORPC Transportation Match (MPO & CORPO) $502,015 $424,246 ($77,769)
SUBTOTAL OF JOINTLY FUNDED PROJECTS $5,020,149 $4,242,460 ($777,689)
Programming - Transportation & Infrastructure Development
Infrastructure Program $200,049 $193,779 ($6,270)
Gohio $796,360 $774,519 ($21,841)
Regional Supplemental Planning $174,399 $209,594 $35,195
FTA 5310 Designated Recipient - Enhanced Mobility Programs $1,781,286 $2,731,917 $950,631
Technical Assistance $284,148 $266,968 ($17,180)
Competitive and Economic Development & Fr. Co TID $587,905 $652,106 $64,201
USEDA Grant $6,398 $293,521 $287,123
Major Growth and Economic Development $736,127 $475,000 ($261,127)
CORPO Safe Streets for All $165,061 $0 ($165,061)
Safe Streets for All $0 $663,429 $663,429
ODOT Mobility Management Planning $224,702 $235,101 $10,399
Local Forecasting/ Modeling (NUC) $50,000 $0 ($50,000)
Various Transportation & Infrastructure Development Projects (NUC) $504,181 $809,041 $304,860

SUBTOTAL PROGRAMMING - TRANSPORTATION & 
INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT $5,510,618 $7,304,973 $1,794,358
Planning
Clean Ohio $21,060 $29,031 $7,971
Regional Supplemental Planning $136,376 $138,042 $1,666
Greenways Program $217,156 $182,236 ($34,920)
Air Quality Awareness $599,520 $566,123 ($33,397)
Insight 2050 Academy $4,000 $0 ($4,000)
Ohio EPA $119,317 $0 ($119,317)
Sustaining Scioto $133,650 $141,839 $8,189
Central Ohio Greenways Wayfinding Strategy $43,410 $0 ($43,410)
Franklin County HAB and Issuer fees $20,500 $20,500 $0
USEPA Air Quality Grant $181,433 $234,633 $53,200
Climate Pollution Reduction Grant $70,818 $54,358 ($16,460)
American Farmland Trust $14,086 $0 ($14,086)
Electric Vehicle (EV) Charger Reliability and Accessibility Accelerator $0 $1,917,611 $1,917,611
Charging and Fueling Infrastructure (CFI) $0 $3,429,785 $3,429,785
Various Planning Projects (NUC) $399,289 $365,452 ($33,837)
SUBTOTAL PLANNING $1,960,613 $7,079,610 $5,118,995
Planning - Data & Mapping
Regional Supplemental Planning $94,692 $90,296 ($4,396)
Various Data & Mapping Projects - Local $50,015 $68,570 $18,555
Various Data & Mapping Projects (NUC) $191,750 $295,193 $103,443
SUBTOTAL PLANNING - DATA & MAPPING $336,457 $454,060 $117,603
TOTAL PROGRAMMING AND PLANNING $12,827,838 $19,081,103 $6,253,266
NUC = Not Under Contract

9



DETAIL SOURCES BY DEPARTMENT

RESIDENTIAL SERVICES 2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Energy Efficiency
Columbia Gas WarmChoice $2,095,620 $1,363,840 ($731,780)
Home Weatherization Assistance Program $1,389,644 $628,814 ($760,830)
Home Weatherization Assistance Enhancement Program $455,048 $273,531 ($181,517)
GLS Home Weatherization Assistance Program $834,638 $1,041,973 $207,335
GLS Home Weatherization Assistance Enhancment Program $322,449 $424,517 $102,068
HWAP Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) $588,029 $676,841 $88,812
GLS HWAP Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) $792,224 $983,155 $190,931
WDBCO Workforce Wx Training NUC $8,000 $0 ($8,000)
Potential Weatherization Funding (NUC) $52,130 $132,012 $79,882

SUBTOTAL ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES $6,537,783 $5,524,683 ($1,013,099)
Residential Programs
FC Home Repair Program $932,661 $506,930 ($425,731)
Franklin County HAB Applications $10,000 $10,000 $0
COCIC Home Repair $100,379 $0 ($100,379)
Ohio Dept. of Health Lead-Safe Home Fund Contract $247,365 $263,838 $16,473
Healthy Homes Production Program (HHPP) Grant $600,876 $629,476 $28,600
Ohio Department of Development Lead Safe Progam $0 $899,505 $899,505
City of Westerville Home Repair Program $0 $483,047 $483,047
Affordable Housing Trust $33,077 $50,597 $17,520
Renew Homes $16,576 $0 ($16,576)
Various Rehab Projects (NUC) $161,966 $107,142 ($54,824)

SUBTOTAL RESIDENTIAL PROGRAMS $2,102,901 $2,950,535 $847,635
TOTAL FOR RESIDENTIAL & ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES $8,640,683 $8,475,218 ($165,464)
NUC = Not Under Contract

MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT 2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Services to Members $851,808 $957,688 $105,880
Development Fund $63,911 $76,675 $12,764
Building Lease Payments $183,036 $187,599 $4,563
Other $54,676 $18,573 ($36,103)

TOTAL MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT (See Dues Page for 
Details) $1,153,432 $1,240,536 $87,105

OTHER 2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Local Government Internship Program - Administrative $25,779 $90,570 $64,791
State of the Region Luncheon $122,463 $160,078 $37,615
Summit On Sustainability $123,782 $136,711 $12,929
Operating Reserve $400,000 $405,215 $5,215
Other $110,467 $109,973 ($494)
Interest $42,800 $98,354 $55,554
Building Depreciation $156,006 $165,293 $9,287
Indirect Costs Variance (carryforward from prior years) $46,957 $325,239 $278,282
Fringe Benefits Variance (carryforward from prior years) ($20,789) $148,070 $168,859

TOTAL OTHER $1,007,465 $1,639,502 $632,037

GRAND TOTAL $23,629,418 $30,436,359 $6,806,944

10



SCHEDULE OF FUNDING SOURCES

FUNDING SOURCES 2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

MEMBER DUES $1,576,319 $1,666,761 $90,442

$4,016,119 $3,393,968 ($622,151)
$4,737,818 $5,153,445 $415,627

$987,797 $506,930 ($480,867)
$4,382,033 $4,042,641 ($339,392)

$199,992 $0 ($199,992)
$6,398 $223,521 $217,123

$70,818 $54,358 ($16,460)
$14,086 $0 ($14,086)
$13,410 $0 ($13,410)

$181,433 $234,633 $53,200
$600,876 $629,476 $28,600

$0 $1,917,611 $1,917,611
$0 $3,429,785 $3,429,785
$0 $663,429 $663,429
$0 $899,505 $899,505

FEDERAL FUNDING
Federal Highway Administration (MPO & CORPO)
FTA/Other FHWA 
FC Home Repair Program - CDBG
Home Weatherization Assistance Program - ODOD
Brownfields Grant NUC
USEDA Grant
Climate Polution Reduction Grant -USEPA
American Farmland Trust
Central Ohio Greenways Wayfinding Strategy
USEPA AQ Grant
Healthy Homes Production Program (HHPP) Grant - HUD
Electric Vehicle Charger Reliability & Accessibility Accelerator FHWA  
Charging and Fueling Infrastructure (CFI) - FHWA
Safe Streets For All - FHWA
Ohio Department of Development Lead Safe Program - ARPA
Other Federal Funding NUC $0 $712,480 $712,480

SUBTOTAL FEDERAL FUNDING $15,210,779 $21,861,781 $6,651,001
STATE FUNDING
Ohio Department of Transportation (MPO & CORPO funding) $502,015 $424,246 ($77,769)
Ohio Public Works Commission (Infrastructure/Clean Ohio) $77,549 $88,966 $11,417
Ohio EPA Funding $119,317 $0 ($119,317)
Ohio Dept. of Health Lead-Safe Home Fund Contract $247,365 $263,838 $16,473
Other State Funding $545,841 $56,520 ($489,321)

SUBTOTAL STATE FUNDING $1,492,087 $833,570 ($658,517)
UTILITIES $2,095,620 $1,482,042 ($613,578)
FOUNDATION/CORPORATE FUNDING $128,772 $105,721 ($23,051)
LOCAL & OTHER FUNDING
Infrastructure Program & Clean Ohio $143,560 $133,844 ($9,716)
Summit on Sustainability $123,782 $136,711 $12,929
Housing Local Contracts $116,956 $600,189 $483,233
Transportation & Infrastructure Local Funds $1,163,451 $1,187,651 $24,200
Planning - Data & Mapping Local Funds $346,247 $463,329 $117,082
Planning Local Funds $428,876 $614,948 $186,072
Greenways Local Program $217,156 $182,236 ($34,920)
State of the Region $122,463 $160,078 $37,615
Local Government Internship Program $25,779 $90,570 $64,791
Other $368,603 $345,266 ($23,337)
Interest $42,800 $98,354 $55,554

SUBTOTAL LOCAL & OTHER FUNDING $3,099,673 $4,013,175 $913,502
Interperiod Indirect Receivable/(Reserve) $46,957 $325,239 $278,282
Interperiod Fringe Benefits Receivable/(Reserve) ($20,789) $148,070 $168,859

TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES $23,629,418 $30,436,359 $6,806,941
NUC = Not Under Contract

11



SUBCONTRACTORS BY DEPARTMENT

2024 
BUDGET

2025 
BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

PROGRAMMING - TRANSPORTATION

Major Growth and Economic Development $650,000 $475,000 ($175,000)

Safe Streets for All $0 $800,000 $800,000
Other/Local Transportation Projects (NUC) $239,926 $376,028 $136,102

SUBTOTAL  PROGRAMMING - TRANSPORTATION $889,926 $1,651,028 $761,102
PLANNING & DATA

Air Quality Awareness $80,841 $81,780 $939

Central Ohio Greenways Wayfinding Strategy $13,410 $0 ($13,410)

USEPA Air Quality Grant (NUC) $82,000 $104,366 $22,366

Natural Asset Mapping $12,500 $0 ($12,500)

Electric Vehicle (EV) Charger Reliability and Accessibility Accelerator $0 $1,700,000 $1,700,000

Charging and Fueling Infrastructure (CFI) $0 $3,000,000 $3,000,000
Other Misc./Local Transportation Projects (NUC) $226,305 $0 ($226,305)

SUBTOTAL PLANNING $415,056 $4,886,146 $4,471,090
RESIDENTIAL & ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES

Columbia Gas Warmchoice $1,416,786 $831,858 ($584,928)

Home Weatherization Assistance Program $467,388 $253,321 ($214,067)

Home Weatherization Assistance Enhancement Program $317,990 $210,412 ($107,578)

GLS Weatherization Assistance Program $529,958 $519,918 ($10,040)

GLS Weatherization Assistance Enhancement Program $241,744 $314,043 $72,299

HWAP Readiness $48,741 $48,741 $0

GLS Readiness $21,122 $42,243 $21,121

HWAP BIL $575,901 $359,738 ($216,163)

GLS BIL $792,224 $565,882 ($226,342)

Franklin County Urgent Repair Program $626,000 $408,000 ($218,000)

COCIC Home Repair for Wx Deferrals NUC $80,000 $0 ($80,000)

Ohio Dept. of Health Lead-Safe Home Fund Contract $151,000 $138,202 ($12,798)

Healthy Homes Production Program (HHPP) Grant $311,114 $311,115 $1

Affordable Housing Trust $26,397 $39,845 $13,448

Renew Homes Inspections and Intake Support $10,000 $0 ($10,000)

Ohio Department of Development Lead Safe Program $0 $520,830 $520,830

City of Westerville Home Repair $0 $372,350 $372,350
Weatherization & Housing (NUC) $75,000 $0 ($75,000)

SUBTOTAL RESIDENTIAL & ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES $5,691,365 $4,936,498 ($754,867)

TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR EXPENSES $6,996,347 $11,473,672 $4,477,325
NUC - Not Under Contract

SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTORS

12



DIRECT TOTAL INDIRECT
LABOR COST

& FRINGES ALLOCATION
Transportation & Infrastructure $2,855,206 $1,741,676
Planning & Sustainability $1,884,896 $1,149,787
Data & Mapping $1,217,316 $742,563
Residential Services $1,885,193 $1,149,968
Member Dues $511,046 $311,738
Other Grants & Programs $111,743 $68,163
Less:  Estimated Turnover & Soft Funding ($553,589) ($337,693)

TOTAL GRANTS & PROGRAMS $7,911,812 $4,826,201
Indirect Labor & Fringes
Information & Technology Services $604,468
Finance  $785,533
Communications & Engagement $441,115
Executive Management $711,521
Human Resources & Facility $521,999
Contract & Proposal Development, Other Indirect Labor $98,371
Less:  Estimated Turnover & Soft Funding ($120,578)

TOTAL INDIRECT LABOR $3,042,429
General Overhead Expenses
Materials & Supplies $44,260
Services & Charges $889,154
Rent & Utilities $492,374
Other General Overhead $27,744

TOTAL GENERAL OVERHEAD $1,453,532
Retention/Severance $5,000

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS $4,500,961

ACTUAL INDIRECT RATES 56.89%
Carry Forward Balance as of 12/31/23 $325,239

ALLOCATED INDIRECT COSTS $4,826,201

ALLOCATED INDIRECT COSTS RATES 61.00%

INDIRECT GENERAL 
LABOR & FRINGES OVERHEAD TOTAL

Information & Technology Services $604,468 $263,687 $868,155
Human Resources $414,353 $180,707 $595,061
Facility $107,646 $557,226 $664,872
Retention/Severance $0 $5,000 $5,000
Finance  $785,533 $284,919 $1,070,452
Communications & Engagement $441,115 $88,413 $529,528
Executive Management $711,521 $6,340 $717,861
Contract & Proposal Development, Other Indirect Labor $98,371 $72,240 $170,611
Less:  Estimated Turnover & Soft Funding ($120,578) $0 ($120,578)

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS $3,042,429 $1,458,532 $4,500,961

Indirect Cost Allocation Budget
January 1, 2025 to December 31, 2025

13



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
111 Liberty St. Suite 100
Columbus, Ohio 43215

P. 614.228.2663
 info@morpc.org | www.morpc.org



��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??��NO5+6� P<BQA�RKSGL?9C?T�E<8?S�;U?TBL8A@�;SS8J?T��VW4X6� Y=M?FZ?T�[\]�[̂[_��àbcXd46� DT=U=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�HE:̂e:[_f�g̀,hhi1j�k.-l,1m0hi.1�j3i2,ni1,m�012�ni-ihm�o./�hp,�qrqs�k.-l,1m0hi.1�t,0/u��Y?Q�J=FU?AGBL8=A�@K89?C8A?G�BT?�T?J=FF?A9?9�S=T�L<?�U?T8=9�Z?@8AA8A@�vBAKBTw�x]�[̂[y�BA9�?A98A@�z?J?FZ?T�ex]�[̂[y{���|SL?T�U?TS=TF8A@�FBT}?L�T?G?BTJ<]�T?M8?Q�=S�ZK9@?LBTw�T?GLT8JL8=AG]�BA9�T?M8?Q�Zw�L<?�~?A?S8LG���E=FU?AGBL8=A�E=FF8LL??]�7;>DE�FBAB@?F?AL�T?J=FF?A9G�e{y�U?TJ?AL�BJT=GG�L<?�Z=BT9�GBCBTw�8AJT?BG?G�S=T�BCC�U?TFBA?AL�?FUC=w??G�<8T?9�Zw�P?UL?FZ?T�ê]�[̂[_]�?SS?JL8M?�=A�vBAKBTw�x]�[̂[y{��E=AG8GL?AL�Q8L<�UT8=T�w?BTG�BA9�L=�F??L�L<?�A??9G�=S�J<BA@8A@�U=G8L8=AG�BA9�L?BF�F?FZ?TG�UT=@T?GG8A@�8A�L<?8T�JBT??TG�Q<8C?�U?TS=TF8A@�A?Q�9KL8?G]�L<?�T?G=CKL8=A�BCG=�BKL<=T8�?G�UT=F=L8=AG]�QB@?�GJBC?�B9�KGLF?ALG]�8AJCK98A@�L<=G?�T?GKCL8A@�ST=F�BAw�J=FU?AGBL8=A�BA9�JCBGG8S8JBL8=A�@TB9?�������������������������������L=�S=KT�BA9�=A?:<BCS��_{y���U?TJ?AL�=S�L=LBC�UBwT=CC{��<8G�BCG=�8AJCK9?G�U=L?AL8BC�BQBT9G�S=T�L<?�GBCBTw�?A<BAJ?F?AL�UT=@TBFG]�Q<8J<�BT?�@TBAL�SKA9?9�UT=9KJL8=A:ZBG?9�8AJ?AL8M?{���E=AG8GL?AL�Q8L<�=KT�JKTT?AL�UTBJL8J?G]�8A98M89KBCG�L<BL�T?BJ<�L<?�FBI8FKF�=S�L<?8T�GBCBTw�@TB9?�Q8CC�A=L�<BM?�BA�8AJT?BG?�8A�L<?8T�ZBG?�BAAKBC�GBCBTw�Z?w=A9�L<?�FBI8FKF�ZKL�FBw�T?J?8M?�B�=A?:L8F?�Z=AKG�ZBG?9�=A�U?TS=TFBAJ?{���7;>DE�Q8CC�J=AL8AK?�L=�KG?�L<?�U?TS=TFBAJ?�?MBCKBL8=A�UT=@TBF�L<BL�8G�JKTT?ALCw�8A�UCBJ?{��<?��������������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������������������������������������������¡��|LLBJ<F?ALf�>?G=CKL8=A�HE:̂e:[_��



���������	
�������

��������
������������
����� ����
���
 �����
!�"
�#�
$%$&
������������
'��"(

)*���+�,
-./
0/1
2345/640/7
89/
/7-8:647./5
;<9
=86/0589
>/89
��?@
805

)*���+�,
-./
A/0/;4-7
B
�<CD/078-4<0
�<CC4--//
C/-
805
547=377/5
��?
78689>
40=9/87/7,
./86-.
=89/
805
<-./9
:/0/;4-7@
805

)*���+�,
-./
A/0/;4-7
B
�<CD/078-4<0
�<CC4--//
5/64:/98-/5
805
E��F�
C8082/C/0-
D9<G45/7
-./
;<66<1402
9/=<CC/058-4<07@
0<1
-./9/;<9/

A�
��
�����H�I
AJ
�*�
�K�����H�
��EE�����
�L
�*�
MNOPQRNQ
STUNQVWX
YXWVVNVU
ZQMMN��NQV[

�/=-4<0
\]
 _̂̀a
a_b
̀cbdefgh
eijkbdh̀alid
cmlnboldbh
̀dn
oljlah
piq
a_b
rsr?
=<CD/078-4<0
>/89
7.866
:/
87
;<66<17[

 8t
+1895
-.9//
805
<0/�.86;
u�]?t
D/9=/0-
8=9<77
-./
:<895
182/
40=9/87/7
-<
D/9C80/0-
/CD6<>//7
/CD6<>/5
87
<;
�/D-/C:/9
�,
���]

:t
�./
/v/=3-4G/
549/=-<9
47
83-.<94w/5
80
8C<30-
<;
;<39
805
<0/�.86;
u�]?t
D/9=/0-
<;
-<-86
8003864w/5
D8>9<66
87
<;
�/D-/C:/9
�,
���
;<9
2980-402[
x̀ cb
hèob
̀nymhajbdahz
{h̀|bh}z
78689>
/0.80=/C/0-
805
D9<C<-4<07
14-.<3-
D94<9
8DD9<G86
<;
-./
�v/=3-4G/
�<CC4--//
87
6<02
87
4-
47
D9/7=94:/5
:>
-./
=<CD/078-4<0
2345/640/7]

 =t
�./
/v/=3-4G/
549/=-<9
47
83-.<94w/5
-<
D9<G45/
8
<0/�-4C/
C/94-
:<037
-<
7-8;;
-.8-
/v=//5
-./49
78689>
2985/,
4;
189980-/5,
9/C840402
14-.40
-./
8:<G/
8229/28-/
40=9/87/
-.9/7.<65]

�/=-4<0
�]
 �.8-
-./
;4080=/
549/=-<9
47
83-.<94w/5
-<
37/
8DD9<v4C8-/6>
-.9//
805
<0/
.86;
u�]?t
D/9=/0-
<;
-<-86
8003864w/5
D8>9<66
87
<;
�/D-/C:/9
�,
���
;<9
8=9<77
-./
:<895
40=9/87/7
D637
;<39
805
<0/�.86;
u�]?t
D/9=/0-
<;
-<-86
8003864w/5
D8>9<66
87
<;
�/D-/C:/9
�,
���
piq
x̀ cb
hèob
̀nymhajbdahz
{h̀|bh}z
78689>
/0.80=/C/0-
805
D9<C<-4<07]

�/=-4<0
�]
 �.8-
-./
/v/=3-4G/
549/=-<9
47
83-.<94w/5
-<
-8~/
73=.
<-./9
8=-4<0
805
/v/=3-/
805
5/64G/9
73=.
<-./9
5<=3C/0-7
87,
8=-402
14-.
-./
85G4=/
<;
6/286
=<307/6,
./
7.866
5//C
0/=/7789>
805
8DD9<D948-/
-<
=899>
<3-
-./
40-/0-
<;
-.47
9/7<63-4<0]

�/=-4<0
�]
 �.8-
-.47
=<CC4--//
;4057
805
5/-/9C40/7
-.8-
866
;<9C86
5/64:/98-4<07
805
8=-4<07
<;
-.47
=<CC4--//
=<0=/90402
805
9/68-402
-<
-./
85<D-4<0
<;
-.47
9/7<63-4<0
1/9/
-8~/0
40
<D/0
C//-4027
<;
-.47
=<CC4--//]


 �����������������������������������������

A/0
�/776/9,
+=-402
�.849
T�TZ��N�T
ZQMMN��TT






���������	
������
����
�
���������
�����
 ��	����
��
����
 �!"�����
!��
  #�$	
%����������
�#���
&'�����	�
&������
���'����
!��
  #�$	
%����������
�#���
&'�����	�
&������
(��#������
 
 &#��
�������
����
 �����	
)��*��
+��
�����	
�����
 ,���"!��
��
����











��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� T?GG8JB�UK?AVC8�E<8?N�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�;NN8J?O�W�X?A8=O�Y8O?JL=O�=N�DCBAA8A@��Z[4\6� ]=M?FQ?O�̂_̀�̂âb��cdef\g46� DO=h=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�̂i:̂bj�k[3lm./non1p�lm,�,q,r3lns,�2n/,rl./�l.�,1l,/�n1l.�01�0p/,,-,1l�tnlm�Znul/nrl�vw�x0l3/0y�S,u.3/r,u�[uunul01r,�g.31rny�zxS[g{�l.�u,/s,�0u�lm,�yn0nu.1�|./�lm,�gy,01�5mn.�}/,,1�c~0r,�g.1u,/s0ln.1��/.p/0-����<?�789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A��7;>DE��JKOO?ALC��B9F8A8GL?OG�L<?�EC?BA�;<8=��O??A�XhBJ?�E=AG?OMBL8=A�DO=@OBF�N=O�Y8GLO8JL��̀�J=M?O8A@��OBA�C8A�E=KAL�������������������������L=�BJ�K8O?�=h?A�GhBJ?̀�hO=L?JL�BA9�?A<BAJ?�O8hBO8BA�J=OO89=OG�BA9�hO=L?JL�J=AG?OMBL8=A�hO=h?OL8?G�8A�h?Oh?LK8L����A�L<8G�JBhBJ8L�̀�7;>DE�GLBNN�G?OM?G�BG�L<?�=NN8J8BC�C8B8G=A�L=�L<?�;<8=�DKQC8J��=O�G�E=FF8GG8=À��=O�8A@�KA9?O�L<?�@K89BAJ?�=N�L<?�]BLKOBC�>?G=KOJ?G��GG8GLBAJ?�E=KAJ8C��]>�E����7;>DE�<BG�Q??A�BG�?9�L=�J=AG89?O�?IhBA98A@�8LG�O=C?�L=�G?OM?�BG�L<?�C8B8G=A�N=O�Y8GLO8JL�i�̀��<8J<�?AJ=FhBGG?G��B8ON8?C9̀��8J�8A@̀�UA=Ì�7=OO=�̀�D8J�B�B�̀�BA9�Y?CB�BO?�E=KAL8?G���<?O?�8G�JKOO?ALC��B�MBJBAJ��N=O�L<?�C8B8G=A�O=C?�N=O�L<8G�98GLO8JL��X<=KC9�7;>DE�BGGKF?�L<8G�O?Gh=AG8Q8C8L�̀�L<?�O=C?��=KC9�Q?@8A�8A�TBAKBO��̂â���8L<�B�L=LBC�QK9@?L�=N� i�̀�aa�L<O=K@<�7BOJ<�=N�̂â¡�BCC=JBL?9�N=O�B9F8A8GLOBL8M?�J=GLG��7;>DE�BCG=�O?G?OM?G�L<?�O8@<L�L=�BGG?GG�BhhC8JBALG�B�M=CKALBO��N??�=N�Kh�L=�=A?�h?OJ?AL�h?O�BhhO=M?9�hO=¢?JL��U?��O?Gh=AG8Q8C8L8?G��=KC9�8AJCK9?�hCBAA8A@�BA9�<=GL8A@�]>�E�F??L8A@G̀�?AGKO8A@�J=FhC8BAJ?��8L<�hO=@OBF�O?�K8O?F?ALG̀�hO=J?GG8A@�BhhC8JBL8=AG̀�BA9�NBJ8C8LBL8A@�L<?�G?C?JL8=A�=N�hO=¢?JLG�N=O�B�BO9G������LLBJ<F?ALj�>?G=CKL8=A�̂i:̂b��



���������	
����

������������
���
���������
��������
��
�����
����
��
����� ���
!���
"�#�����
$%
&�����'
(�#�����#
�##�#�����
)�����'
*&(�)+
��
#����
�#
���
'���#��
,��
���
)'���
-���
.����
/0���
)��#��������
1����� 2

34���5�6
789
:;<�8;=
�9>;=?@A
BA@??;?>
C=DD;EE;=?
F:��BCG
HIJJ9?7AK
@<D;?;E79JE
789
CA9@?
�8;=
LJ99?
�M@H9
C=?E9JN@7;=?
BJ=>J@D
O=J
P;E7J;H7
Q6
H=N9J;?>
RJ@?SA;?
C=I?7K6
@?<
E9JN9E
@E
789
=OO;H;@A
A;@;E=?
7=
789
�8;=
BITA;H
3=JSE
C=DD;EE;=?
I?<9J
789
>I;<@?H9
=O
789
	@7IJ@A
�9E=IJH9E
5EE;E7@?H9
C=I?H;AU
@?<



34���5�6
789
>=@A
=O
789
MJ=>J@D
;E
7=
@HVI;J9
=M9?
EM@H96
MJ=79H7
@?<
9?8@?H9
J;M@J;@?
H=JJ;<=JE
@?<
MJ=79H7
H=?E9JN@7;=?
MJ=M9J7;9E
;?
M9JM97I;7KU
@?<


34���5�6
:��BC
8@E
T99?
@ES9<
7=
H=?E;<9J
9WM@?<;?>
;7E
J=A9
7=
E9JN9
@E
789
A;@;E=?
O=J
P;E7J;H7
�X
T9>;??;?>
;?
Y@?I@JK
�Z�[6
\8;H8
9?H=DM@EE9E
R@;JO;9A<6
�;HS;?>6
]?=W6
:=JJ=\6
B;HS@\@K6
@?<
P9A@\@J9
C=I?7;9EU
@?<


34���5�6
S9K
J9EM=?E;T;A;7;9E
\=IA<
;?HAI<9
MA@??;?>
@?<
8=E7;?>
	�5C
D997;?>E6
9?EIJ;?>
H=DMA;@?H9
\;78
MJ=>J@D
J9VI;J9D9?7E6
MJ=H9EE;?>
@MMA;H@7;=?E6
@?<
O@H;A;7@7;?>
789
E9A9H7;=?
=O
MJ=̂9H7E
O=J
@\@J<U
?=\
789J9O=J9

_�
��
�����̀�P
_a
�4�
bc"d-ec-
(f.c-&�g
1g�&&c&.
)-bbc//c-&h

�9H7;=?
�i
 �8@7
789
9W9HI7;N9
<;J9H7=J
;E
@I78=J;j9<
7=
9?79J
;?7=
@?
@>J99D9?7
\;78
P;E7J;H7
�X
78J=I>8
:@JH8
�Z�k
\;78
l�X6[ZZ
@AA=H@79<
O=J
@<D;?;E7J@7;N9
H=E7Ei
:��BC
@AE=
J9E9JN9E
789
J;>87
7=
@EE9EE
@MMA;H@?7E
@
N=AI?7@JK
O99
=O
IM
7=
=?9
M9JH9?7
M9J
@MMJ=N9<
MJ=̂9H7i


�9H7;=?
�i
 �8@7
789
9W9HI7;N9
<;J9H7=J
;E
@I78=J;j9<
7=
@MMJ=N9
=?9
=J
D=J9
9W79?E;=?E
O=J
M9JO=JD@?H9
=O
E9JN;H9E
I?<9J
789
O=J9>=;?>
@>J99D9?7E
@?<
H8@?>9
=J<9JE
O=J
@D=I?7E
IM
7=
789
O;?@?H;@A
@I78=J;j@7;=?
A9N9AE
;?
789
:��BC
TKA@\E
\;78=I7
OIJ789J
@I78=J;j@7;=?
OJ=D
78;E
C=DD;EE;=?i


�9H7;=?
Qi
 �8@7
789
9W9HI7;N9
<;J9H7=J
;E
@I78=J;j9<
7=
7@S9
EIH8
=789J
@H7;=?
@?<
9W9HI79
@?<
<9A;N9J
EIH8
=789J
<=HID9?7E
@E6
@H7;?>
\;78
789
@<N;H9
=O
A9>@A
H=I?E9A6
89
E8@AA
<99D
?9H9EE@JK
@?<
@MMJ=MJ;@79
7=
H@JJK
=I7
789
;?79?7
=O
78;E
J9E=AI7;=?i

�9H7;=?
�i

�8@7
78;E
C=DD;EE;=?
O;?<E
@?<
<979JD;?9E
78@7
@AA
O=JD@A
<9A;T9J@7;=?E
@?<
@H7;=?E
=O
78;E
C=DD;EE;=?
H=?H9J?;?>
@?<
J9A@7;?>
7=
789
@<=M7;=?
=O
78;E
J9E=AI7;=?
\9J9
7@S9?
;?
=M9?
D997;?>E
=O
78;E
C=DD;EE;=?i


 















































































C8J;E
5D=J=E9
LJ==D9E6
C8@;J

 
 
 
 
 
 bc"d-ec-
(f.c-&�g
1g�&&c&.
)-bbc//c-&

�OO9H7;N9
<@79h
 P9H9DT9J
��6
�Z��
�ITD;779<
TKh
 Y9EE;H@
]I9?jA;6
C8;9O
�9>;=?@A
BA@??;?>
�OO;H9J
m
�9?;=J
P;J9H7=J
=O

 
 
 BA@??;?>
BJ9M@J9<
TKh
 _J@?<;
3897E7=?96
P;J9H7=J
=O
�IE7@;?@T;A;7K
5I78=J;7Kh
 
 �8;=
�9N;E9<
C=<9
�9H7;=?
X�Qi��
R=J
@H7;=?
<@79h
 P9H9DT9J
��6
�Z��




��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� T=G?U<�VBOO8LWX�Y?A8=O�Z8O?JL=O�=N�V=M?OAF?AL�[NNB8OG�BA9�E=FFKA8LW�>?CBL8=AG��\]4̂ 6� _=M?FQ?O�̀aX�̀b̀c��defĝh46� DO=U=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�ij:̀ck�lmnopqros�ot�uvwxyz{�|}|~�������3������.�����]�,120���DC?BG?�N8A9�BLLBJ<?9�>?G=CKL8=A�ij:̀cX�B9=UL8A@�L<?�̀b̀�:̀b̀��DKQC8J�D=C8JW�[@?A9B���<8G������������������������� ��¡��¢���¡�¢��£�¤�¥��¤�£�¡����������¦����§�������̈���������©�[���¦¢��������¦������ ��@=BCGX�MBCK?GX�BA9�JKOO?AL�ª=O«X�8L�ª8CC�Q?�KL8C8¬?9�QW�7;>DE�GLBNN�L=�@K89?�B9M=JBJW�Q?N=O?�L<?�GLBL?�BA9�N?9?OBC�@=M?OAF?ALG����<?�DKQC8J�D=C8JW�[@?A9B�ªBG�N=OKFKCBL?9�QW�B�ª=O«8A@�@O=KU�=N�7;>DE�F?FQ?OG�BA9�J=FFKA8LW�C?B9?OGX�BA9�BUUO=M?9�QW�L<?�>?@8=ABC�D=C8JW�>=KA9LBQC?�=A�_=M?FQ?O�̀iX�̀b̀c����<?�DKQC8J�D=C8JW�[@?A9B�DD[®�̄=O«8A@�VO=KU�ªBG�J<B8O?9�QW�L<?�>?@8=ABC�D=C8JW�>=KA9LBQC?�°8J?�E<B8OX�7BW=O�YC=BA�YUBC98A@�_?ª�[CQBAW®���<?�DD[�̄=O«8A@�VO=KU�ªBG�J=FUO8G?9�=N�B�98M?OG?�@O=KU�=N�C=JBC�QKG8A?GGX�A=A:UO=N8LX�BA9�@=M?OAF?AL�C?B9?OGX�FBAW�=N�ª<=F�BO?�7;>DE�J=FF8GG8=A�F?FQ?OGX�NO=F�OKOBCX�KOQBAX�BA9�GKQKOQBA�J=FFKA8L8?G�BA9�O?UO?G?AL8A@�B�MBO8?LW�=N�U=C8L8JBC�U?OGU?JL8M?G���<?�̄=O«8A@�VO=KU�F?L�=A�L<O??�=JJBG8=AG�Q?Lª??A�[K@KGL�BA9�;JL=Q?O�b̀̀c����<?�>?@8=ABC�D=C8JW�>=KA9LBQC?�O?J=FF?A9G�UBGGB@?�=N�>?G=CKL8=A�ij:̀c�BL�L<?�Z?J?FQ?O�ì�E=FF8GG8=A�F??L8A@�L=�BCC=ª�N=O�UKQC8J�J8OJKCBL8=A�BL�L<?�Q?@8AA8A@�=N�L<?�A?ª�±�Y��E=A@O?GG�BA9�;<8=�V?A?OBC�[GG?FQCW�8A�²i�̀b̀����[LLBJ<F?ALk�>?G=CKL8=A�ij:̀c���



 

RESOLUTION 18-24 
 

“Adoption of MORPC’s 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda” 
 
WHEREAS, members of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) Board, the  
Regional Policy Roundtable, and the Public Policy Agenda Working Group collaborated to create a 
robust, inclusive, and forward thinking 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda; and 
 
WHEREAS, it describes MORPC’s leading and collaborative policy initiatives for the years 2025 and 
2026, which directly relate to its mission, goals, and objectives; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda provides a framework to advocate for policies that 
promote regionalism, enhance Central Ohio’s transportation system, promote sustainability, and expand 
prosperity and opportunity in our growing region; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda provides direction to MORPC members and staff in 
order to act in concert with those initiatives; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda encourages a collaborative approach to public policy 
advocacy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda was designed to reflect the Central Ohio region and 
address important public policy issues and legislation that occur throughout the legislative session; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda will help MORPC lead in local, state, and federal policy 
matters; now therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 
 
Section 1. That it supports and adopts the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda.   
 
Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall deem 
necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 
Section 3.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions of 

this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were taken in 
open meetings of this Commission 

 
 
 

                                                                                
Chris Amorose Groomes, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Effective date: December 12, 2024 
Submitted by:  Lourdes Barroso de Padilla, Regional Policy Roundtable Chair 
Prepared by:  Joseph Garrity, Senior Director of Government Affairs and Community Relations 
Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 
For action date: December 12, 2024 
Attachment:  2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda 



������������	�
������������������������
������	����������������������������������������� ����!�"#$%&'(()*+,-.+.#/�0)*�1#2./1$+.3#�$-%�(,41.5�()1.56�1#$%#*/7.(�0*)8�9':;<��=����>����������!?�����?������������!?�������������@�!����@�����������������!���������?��������������������?�������A��!A����	�����������������������!����!��	���!����������?������B����������������!�������!�����!C�D�
������������A������!��������!������������?A�B��������������?��!������������������	@��������@����������������C�D���AA����A������!������B����A�������������������B��������!�������A��������������B���������!�B������������C��D����?�������������������������?�����������	���������������������?A���������E�����	��������@������?��@��������?	��������������C���D���AA���������������!�������F�A������!������A��?��������!��������?������B�������!��������������	����A������������������������?���!������!C�D�
�����������������!�!��������G!� �����=����?������C�D��AA�!������!�����������B�������!������������?������!����?��	���??���	C�D�
����������H�����I��!�?���!������	��	�������	������!�AA������!���������A��J���!����������AA��������!�����������������������������!����!C��D����?����A������!@�A�����?!@�������������?������������B����������K!��������������!��������C�D�L������������!���������������B!����������������?��!���������A������?�����!���������	������������!������C���D���AA��������!�������������������!������������?��!�����!���B����?!������������	�������??�������!@���������������!@��������!@������������������!������������A������A������������������������?�C�D�
������������A������!@��������!@��������������������!�������������K!�!�AA�	����E�����	����!�����������	A�!�����������A����������!C�D����!������������!�AA��������������������??���	���!������A��J���!����!���������!�������������������������D�
������������A������!��������!�����������!�AA������������!�B������B�����������������C�D���AA����A������!��������!���������?������������!��!�AA�	����!�!������������	�D���AA����A������!������!�����!������A��?�����A����������!�������M����@�A�����������!������	����A������@�A��!���@���������B�!��!�!����������?����@�������������������	���!������	���A��������!���������������?��!C��



�����������	
�������������������
���
������������������
����������������������
�������������������
�����������
����
�
����������������	�������������������	����
���������������
���
�������������������������	��
�����������
���������
�
������������
���
��
������������� �������!�	
�
����������
���������
���������
������������������������������
���	�������
����"
������#	�$���
���
������������������	
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������!������
��������������
�������������������������������
���	��������
����
��
���������
���������
����������������
����������������	��
�������
���������
����������������������
������������%
������������&�%'���(")*�� ��
���"���
������������
��
����������������	����	����#	�����!������
���������
�����������������	
���
�����
���	������������	
������������
�����
����������
��
��������"
������#	������������	
�
������	�
���������#���
����+���
��
��,�����	���	
�#	��,���*
�
����
���"�������������
��
��	�����	
� ��
���-��
�����
�+���
��
��,���"�������������+����
�����
���������������������
�.�����������
��	����	�
/����
�������������������������������������
������������0
���������
���������������������������������
������������&�%'����#1-#�"�����
�������������������������������

%��
���
�
��
��
�	����������������������������	
������������
�������
�
�����
�
�������+�
�
��
�����������
������
��
������	
�-������������
�-��
���
�������2����!���3--2!4���������������������������
/����������--2!�����������������
�������
����������������
���	��0������
�����������+�����
����
��
������
������
�
�����������������
������������
���������������������������������0�����������	
���
�������������	����������������������������������������!�����
��	
�������������������"
������#	����������������
���
���������������������
�����������������������	
����
�	�������
����������������������������
���	����
��������������
������������������
�������������5����6
���
������������	
����
�����
��!������	�����������������
��
�������������7�������������-�����
�
���*�������37-*�4���"
������#	��������������
����
���
��������������������
�����
���������������
������������������8
���������
�
���
�����
������
�
��������������+����
�����
����������������������
��	
����������,!+-*�9������	
�"
������#	����

����������:��
����������
�
�������
�
�����������
���
�����
��
������
����������������
����%������������!������
������
����������
���	�����
���
�"
������#	���������
���������������������������������
������������
��
�	���������
���
��������������������
�����������������
���
�����
/�������
����
�
������
	��
�������	������������������
�����������������
�������
������
������������0
���
�������
	��
���������
���



���������	
�������������	�
	��
	
�����������
��	���
�������������������
������	����	������
�	���
�������������������
��
	��������������������������������������
�	���
������������������������	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������
	�������	��������������������������������������������
���������������������������������������������������
�����������������
�!����������������������������������������������������
��������
�����	���������	����������������������
��������������������������������������"������������������#	�������������
��������������
�����������	����� ��
	�������

���������������������
�����$������%������
����
�������������������	������������
��������������
��������
���������������������������������&	���������&	����������	����������
�	���
�����������	����!�����������!
�����������
�
�����
	��������� �
�����������������������������������	����������������������������������
�	�����������������������	����������	������������������������������
�
������	�����������������������������
�����	���������������������	������������������������������
����
�������	�����
����'����������������������������������������������(������	����
�����

�
�����������������������������������������
��������������)�����	
�������������������������������	����������
��������������
��	��	�������������������&	��������������������������������	���	�����������*
��	�������	��������	����
�����	�
	���	��������������
������������������ �
�������
��	���������)�����������
�������
�������������	��	�����������������
������������+�����
����������%�����	�����,��������������
����������������	�������
�����������������������	����
�������������
��������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������-�����������

����.���������	����
��������������
�	���
����������
������������
�
���
������������������
�����������������(�������	����
�������������������������
������������������
�����	���������������
�
�������	�������	���������������
������
�
���
����������������
����
�����������)���	�
�����/��	�����������������������	����
�����
����������
�������)���������	����
������
	��������������������	
�������!������������	����
����/��	�����������������������������������

������&	��������	
��������	�������������
���������)���������������
�������
�������
���������
��
����	��������������������	�������������
��������
����������
	������������������������������������
���������
���



�����������	
	������������	���	�����	��	����	����������	����	����
������	�������������		��� �!"�	#$%$&�'!$ (	)	*+�!�($	,	+�-./(	, 0	" �&./"%$	+$1"� ,&	$�� �!2	, 0	,�("%$&2	��&&,-�+,($	3"(4	$�� �!"�	0$%$&�'!$ (	, 0	-./" $//	�+1, "5,("� /6	 � 7'+�8"(/6	. "%$+/"("$/6	, 0	&��,&	1�%$+ !$ (/9		)	:("&"5$	;<=*>?/	>�!'+$4$ /"%$	��� �!"�	#$%$&�'!$ (	@(+,($12	(�	-$(($+	&$%$+,1$	" %�&%$!$ (	�8	(4$	'.-&"�6	'+"%,($6	, 0	 � 7'+�8"(	/$�(�+/6	, 0	,0%��,($	8�+	8. 0" 1	, 0	'�&"�"$/	(�	,0%, �$	&��,&	$�� �!"�	0$%$&�'!$ (	" ($+$/(/9		)	@.''�+(	"!'+�%$0	 ,("� ,&	, 0	/(,($	'�&"�"$/	, 0	 $3	8. 0" 1	(�	,0%, �$	$�� �!"�	0$%$&�'!$ (9			)	A0%��,($	8�+	(4$	��� �!"�	#$%$&�'!$ (	=$,.(4�+"5,("� 	A�(6	34"�4	3"&&	-."&0	&��,&	$�� �!"�	0$%$&�'!$ (	�,',�"(26	/.''�+(" 1	&��,&	'+�B$�(	'+$0$%$&�'!$ (	,�("%"("$/6	, 0	" �+$,/$	+$/�.+�$/	,%,"&,-&$	8�+	'&,  " 1	, 0	($�4 "�,&	,//"/(, �$9	)	C$	,	�+"("�,&	',+( $+	(�	< $	>�&.!-./D	%"/"� 	(�	!,E$	>$ (+,&	<4"�	(4$	!�/(	'+�/'$+�./	+$1"� 	" 	(4$	��. (+29			)	A0%, �$	B�-7,((+,�("� 	, 0	+$($ ("� 	" �$ ("%$/6	 $3	(��&/6	, 0	/(+,($1"$/	(�	$ ��.+,1$	 $3	B�-/	, 0	" %$/(!$ (	(4,(	-$ $8"(	(4$	+$1"� 9	)	>�&&,-�+,($	3"(4	',+( $+/	" 	$0.�,("� 6	&,-�+6	, 0	(4$	'+"%,($	/$�(�+	(�	0$%$&�'	,	!�+$	/E"&&$0	, 0	0"%$+/$	3�+E8�+�$	(�	+$,0"&2	!$$(	(4$	 $$0/	�8	>$ (+,&	<4"�	-./" $//$/6	+$0.�$	3�+E8�+�$	/4�+(,1$/6	, 0	$F', 0	.'3,+0	!�-"&"(2	" (�	G.,&"(2	�,+$$+/9	@./(," ,-&$	H+�3(4	)	*+�!�($	$88"�"$ (	, 0	$88$�("%$	./$	, 0	!, ,1$!$ (	�8	3,/($	/(+$,!/	(4+�.14	0"%$+/"� 6	+$./$6	, 0	+$�2�&" 1	'+�1+,!/9	)	A0%��,($	8�+	"  �%,("%$	&, 07./$	+$1.&,("� /	, 0	'&,  " 1	(��&/	,/	,	3,2	(�I	'+�!�($	/./(," ,-&$	0$%$&�'!$ (J	!," (," 	, 0	+$./$	$F"/(" 1	4�./" 1	, 0	��!!$+�",&	-."&0" 1/J	�� /$+%$	$ %"+� !$ (,&&2	/$ /"("%$	,+$,/J	$ ��.+,1$	8,+!&, 0	'+$/$+%,("� J	+$0.�$	$ $+12	�� /.!'("� J	'+�%"0$	(+, /'�+(,("� 	,&($+ ,("%$/J	, 0	'+�!�($	$88$�("%$	!,($+",&	!, ,1$!$ (9	)	A0%��,($	8�+	'�&"�"$/	, 0	8. 0" 1	(4,(	/.''�+(	,	-+�,0	/'$�(+.!	�8	4�./" 1	�'("� /	K	" 	,&"1 !$ (	3"(4	(4$	=$1"� ,&	L�./" 1	@(+,($12	, 0	M" E:@K	(�	!$$(	(4$	+$1"� D/	1+�3" 1	+$/"0$ (",&	, 0	3�+E8�+�$	 $$0/9		)	@.''�+(	'�&"�"$/	, 0	" �$ ("%$/	(4,(	&$%$+,1$	$F"/(" 1	" 8+,/(+.�(.+$	, 0	$ ��.+,1$	+$0$%$&�'!$ (	, 0	+$" %$/(!$ (	" 	>$ (+,&	<4"�D/	 $"14-�+4��0/	, 0	��!!$+�",&	0"/(+"�(/9	#+"%$	N %$/(!$ (	)	@.''�+(	8$0$+,&	8. 0" 1	8�+	0$8$ /$	" /(,&&,("� /6	!"//"� /6	+$/$,+�46	, 0	�(4$+	" "(",("%$/	(4,(	-$ $8"(	>$ (+,&	<4"�9	)	*,+("�"',($	" 	��,&"("� /	, 0	',+( $+/4"'/	8�+	;<=*>	&��,&	1�%$+ !$ (	!$!-$+/	(�	. 0$+/(, 06	$ 1,1$6	, 0	-$(($+	'�/"("� 	(4$!/$&%$/	8�+	8$0$+,&	, 0	/(,($	8. 0" 1	(4+�.14	,''+�'+",("� /6	,.(4�+"5,("� /6	-"&&/6	1+, (/6	, 0	�(4$+	�''�+(. "("$/9	



��������	
������
	����������
�����������
�	
����
�����������	������
�	����������	�
��
�
������������	��������
�����������	�� !������������
���
�	�����

"��������		���	�����	�����
�
������
�	�
�	������	��	
��	��	�#����
���������
��
�����������	���	��
$�������������#	�$��������	��	
���%&��
�	�������
�	���������
�������



��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� T8CC8BF�7KO9=JU�HI?JKL8M?�V8O?JL=O��WX4Y6� Z=M?FQ?O�[\]�̂\̂_��àbcYd46� DO=e=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�fg:̂_h�iXjj,klm1n�lo,�pmqq0n,�.r�Xq,s012/m0�0t�0�-,-u,/�.r�lo,�+m2v5om.�S,nm.10q�wq011m1n�d.--mttm.1�x+5Swdyz��;A�Z=M?FQ?O�{]�̂\̂_]�L<?�|8CCB@?�E=KAJ8C�=N�L<?�|8CCB@?�=N�}C?IBA9O8B�eBGG?9�B�O?G=CKL8=A�L=�~=8A�L<?�789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A��7;>DE����<8G�O?G=CKL8=A�BJJ?eLG�L<?�|8CCB@?�=N�}C?IBA9O8B�BG�B�F?FQ?O�=N�7;>DE�?NN?JL8M?��BAKBO��f]�̂\̂�]��<8J<�<?CeG�F??L�L<?�9?G8O?�=N�7;>DE�G�F?FQ?OG<8e�L=�J=AL8AK?�L=�@O=��L<?�=O@BA8�BL8=A�N=O�L<?�Q?A?N8L�=N�B�GLO=A@?O�E?ALOBC�;<8=�O?@8=A����<?�̂\̂��9K?G�BGG?GG?9�L=�L<?�|8CCB@?�=N�}C?IBA9O8B��8CC�Q?��f]̂�\����}LLBJ<F?ALh�>?G=CKL8=A�fg:̂_�����������



���������	
����

����������
���
�������
��
������ !��
�"
�
#�#$�!
��
���
%� &'���
(�������
)�������
*�##�""���
+%'()*,-

./���0�1
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
?4@:9=6A4B
234
=44>
;:?
@:778C:?826D41
@::E4?826D4
E78==6=9
6=
:?>4?
2:
4=BF?4
@:=26=F4
9?:G23
8=>
E?:BE4?62HI
8=>

./���0�1
J��KLMB
N6BB6:=
6B
2:
C4
234
?496:=87
D:6@4
8=>
8
@8287HB2
;:?
BFB286=8C6762H
8=>
4@:=:N6@
E?:BE4?62H
6=
:?>4?
2:
B4@F?4
8
@:NE42626D4
8>D8=2894
;:?
L4=2?87
�36:I
8=>

./���0�1
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
38B
E42626:=4>
;:?
N4NC4?B36E
6=
J��KLI
8=>

./���0�1
62
6B
234
>4B6?4
:;
OPQRSMT
N4NC4?B
2:
@:=26=F4
2:
9?:G
;:?
234
C4=4;62
:;
B2?:=9
@:778C:?826:=
:=
?496:=87
6BBF4BI
8=>

./���0�1
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
G677
C4
8BB4BB4>
>F4B
C8B4>
:=
234
�U��
E:EF7826:=
E?:V4@26:=BI
8=>

./���0�1
:=
	:D4NC4?
W1
�U��1
234
5677894
L:F=@67
:;
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
E8BB4>
8
?4B:7F26:=
8@@4E26=9
234
@:=>626:=B
:;
N4NC4?B36E
@:=286=4>
6=
J��KLMB
0?26@74B
:;
09?44N4=2I
=:G
234?4;:?4

X�
��
�����5�Y
XZ
�/�
%[\&']['
(̂ _['̀ �a
)a�̀ [̀̀_
*'%%[bb['̀ c

�4@26:=
�d
 �382
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
6B
8@@4E24>
8B
8
N4NC4?
:;
J��KL
4;;4@26D4
e8=F8?H
�1
�U�fd


�4@26:=
�d
 �382
234
XH78GB
E?:D6>4
2382
:=4
g�h
?4E?4B4=2826D4
8EE:6=24>
CH
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
6B
47696C74
2:
B4?D4
8B
8
D:26=9
N4NC4?
:=
2346?
C4387;
82
234
J��KL
L:NN6BB6:=
N4426=9Bd

�4@26:=
id
 �382
�U�f
>F4B
G677
C4
8BB4BB4>
2:
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
6=
234
8N:F=2
:;
j�1�fUd

�4@26:=
�d
 �382
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
6B
4=26274>
2:
234
B8N4
?49F78?
B4?D6@4B
:;
J��KL
8B
8?4
:234?
N4NC4?B
8=>
2382
8=H
BE4@687
B4?D6@4B
G677
C4
EF?@38B4>
CH
234
5677894
C8B4>
:=
B28=>8?>
J��KL
?824Bd

�4@26:=
fd
 �382
234
4<4@F26D4
>6?4@2:?
6B
8F23:?6A4>
2:
28k4
BF@3
:234?
8@26:=
8=>
4<4@F24
8=>
>476D4?
BF@3
:234?
>:@FN4=2B
8B1
8@26=9
G623
234
8>D6@4
:;
74987
@:F=B471
34
B3877
>44N
=4@4BB8?H
8=>
8EE?:E?6824
2:
@8??H
:F2
234
6=24=2
:;
236B
?4B:7F26:=d

�4@26:=
ld

�382
236B
L:NN6BB6:=
;6=>B
8=>
>424?N6=4B
2382
877
;:?N87
>476C4?826:=B
8=>
8@26:=B
:;
236B
L:NN6BB6:=
@:=@4?=6=9
8=>
?47826=9
2:
234
8>:E26:=
:;
236B
?4B:7F26:=
G4?4
28k4=
6=
:E4=
N4426=9B
:;
236B
L:NN6BB6:=d



 















































































L3?6B
0N:?:B4
m?::N4B1
L386?

 
 
 
 
 
 %[\&']['
(̂ _['̀ �a
)a�̀ [̀̀_
*'%%[bb['̀ 






���������	
����
����
�

���������
�����
 ����� !
"#
$%$&
'�()�����
(!�
 *�++��)
,� �-�.#
�/�������
0� ���- 
1 �2� ��
(!�
 ��+���
3��(!#
,�)(� 45�2
'� ����4
6����� 
7��5- ��!�
 
 65�-
8���4��
9-��
'����-�
:";<$"
=- 
����-�
�����
 0���)(� 
"$#
$%$>





��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� T8CC8BF�7KO9=JU�HI?JKL8M?�V8O?JL=O��WX4Y6� Z=M?FQ?O�[\]�̂\̂_��àbcYd46� DO=e=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�̂\:̂_f�gXhh,ijk1l�jm,�dkjn�.o�+0/k.1�0p�0�-,-q,/�.o�jm,�+k2r5mk.�S,lk.10s�ts011k1l�d.--kppk.1�u+5Stdvw��;A�;JL=Q?O�̂x]�̂\̂_]�L<?�E8Ly�E=KAJ8C�=N�L<?�E8Ly�=N�7BO8=A�eBGG?9�B�O?G=CKL8=A�L=�z=8A�L<?�789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�{7;>DE|}�~<8G�O?G=CKL8=A�BJJ?eLG�L<?�E8Ly�=N�7BO8=A�BG�B�F?FQ?O�=N�7;>DE�?NN?JL8M?��BAKBOy��]�̂\̂�]��<8J<�<?CeG�F??L�L<?�9?G8O?�=N�7;>DE�G�F?FQ?OG<8e�L=�J=AL8AK?�L=�@O=��L<?�=O@BA8�BL8=A�N=O�L<?�Q?A?N8L�=N�B�GLO=A@?O�E?ALOBC�;<8=�O?@8=A}��~<?�̂\̂��9K?G�BGG?GG?9�L=�L<?�E8Ly�=N�7BO8=A��8CC�Q?����]��̂}����LLBJ<F?ALf�>?G=CKL8=A�̂\:̂_�����������



���������	
����

����������
���
����
��
������
� 
�
!�!"��
��
���
��#$%���
&������'
('������
��!!�  ���
)�%&(�*+

,-���.�/
012
3405
67
89:46;
:2<6=;4>2?
012
;22@
76:
<6AA9B6:904C2/
<66D2:904C2
DA9;;4;=
4;
6:@2:
06
2;?E:2
<6;04;E2
=:6F01
9;@
D:6?D2:405G
9;@

,-���.�/
8��H3I?
J4??46;
4?
06
B2
012
:2=46;9A
C64<2
9;@
9
<909A5?0
76:
?E?094;9B4A405
9;@
2<6;6J4<
D:6?D2:405
4;
6:@2:
06
?2<E:2
9
<6JD20404C2
9@C9;09=2
76:
32;0:9A
�146G
9;@

,-���.�/
012
3405
67
89:46;
19?
D204046;2@
76:
J2JB2:?14D
4;
8��H3G
9;@

,-���.�/
40
4?
012
@2?4:2
67
KLMNOIP
J2JB2:?
06
<6;04;E2
06
=:6F
76:
012
B2;2740
67
?0:6;=
<6AA9B6:9046;
6;
:2=46;9A
4??E2?G
9;@

,-���.�/
012
3405
67
89:46;
F4AA
B2
9??2??2@
@E2?
B9?2@
6;
012
����
D6DEA9046;
D:6Q2<046;?G
9;@

,-���.�/
6;
�<06B2:
�R/
����/
012
3405
36E;<4A
67
012
3405
67
89:46;
D9??2@
9
:2?6AE046;
9<<2D04;=
012
<6;@4046;?
67
J2JB2:?14D
<6;094;2@
4;
8��H3I?
.:04<A2?
67
.=:22J2;0G
;6F
012:276:2

S�
��
�����T�U
SV
�-�
�WX$%YW%
&Z[W%\�]
(]�\\W\[
�%��Ŵ Ŵ%\_

�2<046;
̀a
 �190
012
3405
67
89:46;
4?
9<<2D02@
9?
9
J2JB2:
67
8��H3
2772<04C2
b9;E9:5
̀/
���ca


�2<046;
�a
 �190
012
S5A9F?
D:6C4@2
0190
0F6
d�e
:2D:2?2;0904C2?
9DD64;02@
B5
012
3405
67
89:46;
9:2
2A4=4BA2
06
?2:C2
9?
C604;=
J2JB2:?
6;
0124:
B219A7
90
012
8��H3
36JJ4??46;
J2204;=?a

�2<046;
fa
 �190
���c
@E2?
F4AA
B2
9??2??2@
06
012
3405
67
89:46;
4;
012
9J6E;0
67
g̀c/hh�a

�2<046;
�a
 �190
012
3405
67
89:46;
4?
2;040A2@
06
012
?9J2
:2=EA9:
?2:C4<2?
67
8��H3
9?
9:2
6012:
J2JB2:?
9;@
0190
9;5
?D2<49A
?2:C4<2?
F4AA
B2
DE:<19?2@
B5
012
3405
B9?2@
6;
?09;@9:@
8��H3
:902?a

�2<046;
ca
 �190
012
2i2<E04C2
@4:2<06:
4?
9E016:4>2@
06
09j2
?E<1
6012:
9<046;
9;@
2i2<E02
9;@
@2A4C2:
?E<1
6012:
@6<EJ2;0?
9?/
9<04;=
F401
012
9@C4<2
67
A2=9A
<6E;?2A/
12
?19AA
@22J
;2<2??9:5
9;@
9DD:6D:4902
06
<9::5
6E0
012
4;02;0
67
014?
:2?6AE046;a

�2<046;
ka

�190
014?
36JJ4??46;
74;@?
9;@
@202:J4;2?
0190
9AA
76:J9A
@2A4B2:9046;?
9;@
9<046;?
67
014?
36JJ4??46;
<6;<2:;4;=
9;@
:2A904;=
06
012
9@6D046;
67
014?
:2?6AE046;
F2:2
09j2;
4;
6D2;
J2204;=?
67
014?
36JJ4??46;a



 















































































31:4?
.J6:6?2
l:66J2?/
3194:

 
 
 
 
 
 �WX$%YW%
&Z[W%\�]
(]�\\W\[
�%��Ŵ Ŵ%\







���������	
����
����
�

���������
�����
 ������ 
!"
#$#%
&�'(�����
' �
 )�**��(
+���,�-"
�.�������
/�����,�
0��1����
' �
 ��*���
2��' "
+�('��34�1
&������3
5������
6��4,��� �
 
 54�,
7���3��
8,��
&����,�
9!:;#!
<,�
����,�
�����
 /���('��
!#"
#$#=





��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??��NO5+6� P?GG8JB�QK?ARC8�E<8?S�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�;SS8J?T�U�V?A8=T�W8T?JL=T�=S�DCBAA8A@��XY4Z6� [=M?F\?T�]̂_�]̀]a��bcdeZf46� DT=g=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�HE:̀h:]ai�jY3kl./mnm1o�kl,�,p,q3kmr,�2m/,qk./�k.�,1k,/�m1k.�0o/,,-,1ks�tmkl�kl,�N/01uvm1�f.31kw�d.0/2�.x�f.--mssm.1,/s�k.�02-m1msk,/�kl,�e.m1k�f.v3-y3s�012�N/01uvm1�f.31kw�z.3sm1o�Y2rms./w�d.0/2�x./�kl,�{,/m.2�.x�e0130/w�|}�~�~��kl/.3ol�X,q,-y,/��|}�~�~�����TBA�C8A�E=KAL��BJJ?gL?9�BggC8JBL8=AG�S=T�J=AL8AK?9�SKA98A@�=S�EW�����W:SKA9?9�gT=@TBFG�S=T�]̀]]:]̀]a���<?�789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A��7;>DE��B@T??9�L=�J=AL8AK?�L=�G?TM?�BG�L<?�B9F8A8GLTBL=T�=S�L<?�P=8AL�E=CKF\KG�BA9��TBA�C8A�E=KAL���=KG8A@��9M8G=T���=BT9�������BG�9?G8@ABL?9�\��L<?�E8L��BA9�E=KAL��G8AJ?��̂ �̂��7;>DE�GLBSS�G?TM?G�BG�L<?�����G?JT?LBT���8L<�T?Gg=AG8\8C8L��L=�T?J?8M?�BA9�T?M8?��BCC�BggC8JBL8=AG�BA9�gT=M89?�gT=�?JL�8AS=TFBL8=A�L=�L<?�SKCC�\=BT9��7;>DE�BCG=�gT?gBT?G�BA�BAAKBC�T?g=TL_�F=A8L=TG�gT=�?JLG�BAAKBCC��S=T�BSS=T9B\8C8L��T?�K8T?F?ALG_�BA9�FB8ALB8AG�BA�BJL8M?�T=C?�8A�L<?�BSS=T9B\C?�<=KG8A@�J=FFKA8L����KA98A@�S=T�L<?������8CC�8AJCK9?���̀_̀̀ �̀ST=F�L<?�E=KAL��BA9���̀_h̀ �̀8A�8GGK?T�S??G����LLBJ<F?ALi�>?G=CKL8=A�HE:̀h:]a������



���������	
�������

������������
���
���������
 �������
��
�����
����
!����"���#
$���
���
%�!�&'��
(����)
*�!� 
�+
(�""�##�����#
��
! "���#���
���
,����
(�'�"-�#
!� 
%�!�&'��
(����)
.��#���
� ��#��)
*�!� 
+��
���
/���� 
�+
,!��!�)
01
2324
�������
5���"-��
601
23247

89���:�;
<=>
?@ABCDEB
�FGB<H
IFA@J
FK
�FLLEMMEFB>@M
AJLEBEM<>@M
<=>
?>J>@AD
�FLLGBE<H
N>O>DFPL>B<
IDFQC
R@AB<
S�NIRT
KGBJEBU
AVA@J>J
WH
<=>
�X�X
N>PA@<L>B<
FK
9FGMEBU
ABJ

�@WAB
N>O>DFPL>B<
S9�NT
AM
AB
>B<E<D>L>B<
QFLLGBE<H
AG<=F@EY>J
GBJ>@
�E<D>
�
FK
<=>
9FGMEBU
ABJ
�FLLGBE<H
N>O>DFPL>B<
:Q<
FK
Z[\�;
]GWDEQ
�AV
[̂�̂_̂;
AM
AL>BJ>J̀
ABJ

89���:�;
a��]�
VAM
AMC>J
<F
AJLEBEM<>@
<=>
bFEB<
�FDGLWGM
ABJ
?@ABCDEB
�FGB<H
9FGMEBU
:JOEMF@H
IFA@J
ABJ
=AM
W>>B
AVA@J>J
A
QFB<@AQ<
<F
JF
MF̀
ABJ


89���:�;
<=>
M>@OEQ>M
P>@KF@L>J
PG@MGAB<
<F
<=>
QFB<@AQ<
KF@
<=>
bFEB<
�FDGLWGM
ABJ
?@ABCDEB
�FGB<H
9FGMEBU
:JOEMF@H
IFA@J
VEDD
W>
<F
AJLEBEM<>@
ADD
WFA@J
AQ<EOE<E>M
EBQDGJEBU
L>><EBUM;
WFA@J
APPFEB<L>B<M;
P@Fc>Q<
APPDEQA<EFB
@>OE>V;
LFBE<F@EBU
FK
QFLPD><>J
P@Fc>Q<M
ABJ
F<=>@
@>DA<>J
AQ<EOE<E>M̀
BFV
<=>@>KF@>;

I�
��
�����d�N
Ie
�9�
�f�����d�
��aa�����
�?
�9�
gh5ij.hj
klmhjn�o
po�nnhnm
(jgghqqhjnr

�>Q<EFB
ZX
 �=A<
<=>
>s>QG<EO>
JE@>Q<F@
EM
=>@>WH
AG<=F@EY>J
<F
>B<>@
EB<F
AU@>>L>B<M
VE<=
<=>
?@ABCDEB
�FGB<H
IFA@J
FK
�FLLEMMEFB>@M
KF@
<=>
VF@C
J>MQ@EW>J
EB
<=>
QFB<@AQ<
AVA@J>J
KF@
<=>
bFEB<
�FDGLWGM
ABJ
?@ABCDEB
�FGB<H
9FGMEBU
:JOEMF@H
IFA@J
EB
<=>
ALFGB<
GP
<F
t�;�X

�>Q<EFB
�X
 �=A<
<=>
>s>QG<EO>
JE@>Q<F@
EM
AG<=F@EY>J
<F
APP@FO>
FB>
F@
LF@>
>s<>BMEFBM
KF@
P>@KF@LABQ>
FK
M>@OEQ>M
GBJ>@
<=>
KF@>UFEBU
AU@>>L>B<M
ABJ
Q=ABU>
F@J>@M
KF@
ALFGB<M
GP
<F
<=>
KEBABQEAD
AG<=F@EYA<EFB
D>O>DM
EB
<=>
a��]�
WHDAVM
VE<=FG<
KG@<=>@
AG<=F@EYA<EFB
K@FL
<=EM
QFLLE<<>>X


�>Q<EFB
̂X
 �=A<
<=>
>s>QG<EO>
JE@>Q<F@
EM
AG<=F@EY>J
<F
<AC>
MGQ=
F<=>@
AQ<EFB
ABJ
>s>QG<>
ABJ
J>DEO>@
MGQ=
F<=>@
JFQGL>B<M
AM;
AQ<EBU
VE<=
<=>
AJOEQ>
FK
D>UAD
QFGBM>D;
=>
M=ADD
J>>L
B>Q>MMA@H
ABJ
APP@FP@EA<>
<F
QA@@H
FG<
<=>
EB<>B<
FK
<=EM
@>MFDG<EFBX

�>Q<EFB
�X

�=A<
<=EM
QFLLE<<>>
KEBJM
ABJ
J><>@LEB>M
<=A<
ADD
KF@LAD
J>DEW>@A<EFBM
ABJ
AQ�<EFBM
FK
<=EM
QFLLE<<>>
QFBQ>@BEBU
ABJ
@>DA<EBU
<F
<=>
AJFP<EFB
FK
<=EM
@>MFDG<EFB
V>@>
<AC>B
EB
FP>B
L>><EBUM
FK
<=EM
QFLLE<<>>X


 uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

I>B
v>MMD>@;
:Q<EBU
�=AE@
lwl(xyhzl
(jgghyyll

�KK>Q<EO>
JA<>r
 N>Q>LW>@
�;
���
�GWLE<<>J
WHr
 b>MMEQA
vG>BYDE;
�=E>K
�>UEFBAD
]DABBEBU
�KKEQ>@
{
�>BEF@
NE@>Q<F@
FK

 
 
 ]DABBEBU
]@>PA@>J
WHr
 b>MMEQA
vG>BYDE;
�=E>K
�>UEFBAD
]DABBEBU
�KKEQ>@
{
�>BEF@
NE@>Q<F@
FK

 
 
 ]DABBEBU
:G<=F@E<Hr
 
 �=EF
�>OEM>J
�FJ>
�>Q<EFB
\ẐX�Z
?F@
AQ<EFB
JA<>r
 N>Q>LW>@
�;
���




��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� >=Q?OL�T8CC8BFGU�V?A8=O�W8O?JL=O�>?G89?AL8BC�V?OM8J?G��XY4Z6� [=M?FQ?O�\]U�\̂\_��àbcZd46� DO=e=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�\\:\_f�gY3hi./jkj1l�hi,�,m,n3hjo,�h.�,1h,/�j1h.�0l/,,-,1hp�q./�c3rs�tu�vwvx�hi/.3li�X,n,-y,/�xtu�vwvzu�{jhi�hi,�R/01|rj1�d.31hs�b.0/2�.q�d.--jppj.1,/p�q./�0�i.-,�/,}0j/�}/.l/0-~���<?�789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A��7;>DE��<BG�J=AL8AK?9�8LG��=O���8L<�L<?��OBA�C8A�E=KAL��E=FF8GG8=A?OG�N=O�EWP��NKA98A@�N=O�L<?��=F?�>?eB8O�DO=@OBFU�BG�B@O??F?ALG�BO?�BeeO=M?9�Q��L<?��OBA�C8A�E=KAL��E=FF8GG8=A?OG�BA9�L<?�HJ=A=F8J�W?M?C=eF?AL�BA9�DCBAA8A@�W?eBOLF?AL��HWD����7;>DE�BAL8J8eBL?G�NKA98A@�NO=F��OBA�C8A�E=KAL��L=�J=AL8AK?�L<?�B9F8A8GLOBL8=A�=N�B�<=F?�O?eB8O�eO=@OBF�N=O�BA�BF=KAL�Ke�L=����]�F8CC8=A�L=�J=FeC?L?�KO@?AL�<=F?�O?eB8OG�BNL?O�B998L8=ABC�NKA9G�BO?�FB9?�BMB8CBQC?���<8G�O?G=CKL8=A�BKL<=O8�?G�7;>DE�L=�?AL?O�8AL=�B@O??F?ALGU�8AJCK98A@�BAL8J8eBL?9�BF?A9F?AL�G��Ke�L=�L<BL�BF=KAL���<?G?�KA8LG�J=AG8GL�=N�KO@?AL�BA9�?F?O@?AJ��<?BCL<:BA9:GBN?L��O?CBL?9�<=F?�O?eB8OGU�<BA98JBee?9�BJJ?GG8QC?�F=98N8JBL8=AGU�<=F?�G?�B@?�98Ge=GBC�BA9�=O�eO8MBL?��BL?O�G�GL?F�O?eB8OGU�AK8GBAJ?�BQBL?F?ALU�BA9�FB�=O�O?<BQ8C8LBL8=A�N=O�<=F?G�8A��OBA�C8A�E=KAL��=KLG89?�L<?�E8L��=N�E=CKFQKG��T<?O?�e=GG8QC?U�7;>DE��8CC�C?M?OB@?�NKA9G�L<O=K@<�8LG�O?G89?AL8BC�?A?O@��?NN8J8?AJ��eO=@OBFG�BA9�NO=F�=L<?O�B@?AJ8?G�����LLBJ<F?ALf�>?G=CKL8=A�\\:\_��



���������	
����

������������
���
���������
��������
��
�����
����
��������� 
!��
"�#$
%&
'(')
�������
*����+��
,%&
'('-&
.���
���
/���0#��
1����$
2����
�!
1����  ����� 
!��
�
����
��3���
3������4

56���7�8
9:;
<=>?@AB?
CDE?9F
GD>=H
DI
CDJJBKKBD?;=K
>HJB?BK9;=K
9:;
<;H;=>A
CDJJE?B9F
L;M;ADNJ;?9
GADO@
P=>?9
QCLGPR
IE?HB?S
>T>=H;H
UF
9:;
�V�V
L;N>=9J;?9
DI
6DEKB?S
>?H
�=U>?
L;M;ADNJ;?9
Q6�LR
>K
>?
;?9B9A;J;?9
ODJJE?B9F
>E9:D=BW;H
E?H;=
�B9A;
�
DI
9:;
6DEKB?S
>?H
CDJJE?B9F
L;M;ADNJ;?9
7O9
DI
XYZ8
[EUABO
�>T
Y\�\]\8
>K
>J;?H;Ĥ
>?H

56���7�8
9:;
_BH��:BD
�;SBD?>A
[A>??B?S
CDJJBKKBD?
Q_��[CR
:>K
OD?9B?E;H
B9K
TD=@
TB9:
9:;
<=>?@AB?
CDE?9F
GD>=H
DI
CDJJBKKBD?;=K
>?H
T>K
>T>=H;H
>
OD?9=>O98
>?H
>?9BOBN>9;K
=;�O;BMB?S
>?
>J;?HJ;?9
ID=
>HHB9BD?>A
IE?HB?S8
9D
>HJB?BK9;=
>
6DJ;
�;N>B=
[=DS=>J
ID=
:DJ;
K>I;9F
BJN=DM;J;?9K8
;J;=S;?OF
=;N>B=K8
:DJ;
K;T>S;
HBKNDK>A
>?H̀D=
N=BM>9;
T>9;=
KFK9;J
=;N>B=K8
>?H
J>aD=
=;:>UBAB9>9BD?̂
>?H

56���7�8
9:;
K;=MBO;K
N;=ID=J;H
NE=KE>?9
9D
9:;
OD?9=>O9K
ID=
6DJ;
�;N>B=
TBAA
U;
E?H;=
9:;
DM;=KBS:9
DI
_��[C
>?H
U;
BJNA;J;?9;H
9:=DES:
>
ODJUB?>9BD?
DI
_��[C
K9>II
>?H
ADO>A
UEKB?;KK;K
9:>9
>=;
KEUOD?9=>O9;H
B?
_��[CbK
K;=MBO;
>=;>̂
?DT
9:;=;ID=;8

G�
��
�����c�L
Gd
�6�
ef*ghifh
jklfhm�n
on�mmfml
1heefppfhmq

�;O9BD?
XV
 �:>9
9:;
;r;OE9BM;
HB=;O9D=
BK
:;=;UF
>E9:D=BW;H
9D
;?9;=
B?9D
>S=;;J;?9K
TB9:
9:;
<=>?@AB?
CDE?9F
GD>=H
DI
CDJJBKKBD?;=K
ID=
9:;
TD=@
H;KO=BU;H
B?
9:;
OD?9=>O9K
>T>=H;H
ID=
9:;
6DJ;
�;N>B=
[=DS=>J
B?
9:;
>JDE?9
EN
9D
sXVY
JBAABD?V

�;O9BD?
�V
 �:>9
9:;
;r;OE9BM;
HB=;O9D=
BK
>E9:D=BW;H
9D
>NN=DM;
D?;
D=
JD=;
;r9;?KBD?K
ID=
N;=ID=J>?O;
DI
K;=MBO;K
E?H;=
9:;
ID=;SDB?S
>S=;;J;?9K
>?H
O:>?S;
D=H;=K
ID=
>JDE?9K
EN
9D
9:;
IB?>?OB>A
>E9:D=BW>9BD?
A;M;AK
B?
9:;
_��[C
UFA>TK
TB9:DE9
IE=9:;=
>E9:D=BW>9BD?
I=DJ
9:BK
CDJJBKKBD?V


�;O9BD?
\V
 �:>9
9:;
;r;OE9BM;
HB=;O9D=
BK
>E9:D=BW;H
9D
9>@;
KEO:
D9:;=
>O9BD?
>?H
;r;OE9;
>?H
H;ABM;=
KEO:
D9:;=
HDOEJ;?9K
>K8
>O9B?S
TB9:
9:;
>HMBO;
DI
A;S>A
ODE?K;A8
:;
K:>AA
H;;J
?;O;KK>=F
>?H
>NN=DN=B>9;
9D
O>==F
DE9
9:;
B?9;?9
DI
9:BK
=;KDAE9BD?V

�;O9BD?
V

�:>9
9:BK
CDJJBKKBD?
IB?HK
>?H
H;9;=JB?;K
9:>9
>AA
ID=J>A
H;ABU;=>9BD?K
>?H
>O9BD?K
DI
9:BK
CDJJBKKBD?
OD?O;=?B?S
>?H
=;A>9B?S
9D
9:;
>HDN9BD?
DI
9:BK
=;KDAE9BD?
T;=;
9>@;?
B?
DN;?
J;;9B?SK
DI
9:BK
CDJJBKKBD?V



 















































































C:=BK
7JD=DK;
P=DDJ;K8
C:>B=

 
 
 
 
 
 ef*ghifh
jklfhm�n
on�mmfml
1heefppfhm

�II;O9BM;
H>9;q
 L;O;JU;=
X�8
�t�
�EUJB99;H
UFq
 �DU;=9
5BAAB>JK8
�;?BD=
LB=;O9D=8
�;KBH;?9B>A
�;=MBO;K
[=;N>=;H
UFq
 �DU;=9
5BAAB>JK8
�;?BD=
LB=;O9D=8
�;KBH;?9B>A
�;=MBO;K
7E9:D=B9Fq
 
 �:BD
�;MBK;H
CDH;
�;O9BD?
ZX\V�X
<D=
>O9BD?
H>9;q
 L;O;JU;=
X�8
�t�



	Final 2025 Budget Book 12-2-2025.pdf
	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-04-23.pdf
	Budget-compressed
	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-01-23
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-30-22.pdf
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget - Executive Summary - 11-12-22










	Narrative for Executive Summary With Formatting-Comments Deleted - 12-03-23

	2024 Budget Book
	Summary Sch 1

	2024 Budget Book
	Dues Sch 2

	2024 Budget Book
	approp 3

	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-04-23
	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-01-23
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-30-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget - Executive Summary - 11-12-22











	2024 Budget Book-Det. Rev..pdf
	2024 Budget Book
	subcontr Sch 11

	2024 Budget Book
	ICAP Sch 15

	2024 Budget Book.pdf
	programs

	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-04-23
	Budget-compressed

	Table of Contents and Appendix.pdf
	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-04-23.pdf
	Budget-compressed
	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-01-23
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-30-22.pdf
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget - Executive Summary - 11-12-22










	Narrative for Executive Summary With Formatting-Comments Deleted - 12-03-23

	2024 Budget Book
	Summary Sch 1

	2024 Budget Book
	Dues Sch 2

	2024 Budget Book
	approp 3

	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-04-23
	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-01-23
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-30-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget - Executive Summary - 11-12-22











	2024 Budget Book-Det. Rev..pdf
	2024 Budget Book
	subcontr Sch 11

	2024 Budget Book
	ICAP Sch 15

	2024 Budget Book.pdf
	programs

	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-04-23
	Budget-compressed


	2025 Budget Book - 2024-11-29 draft.pdf
	Budget Book covers -2025
	TOC Appendix
	Final 2025 Narrative for Executive Summary 11-29-24.pdf
	Budget Book 11-29-24 draft.pdf
	TOC Appendix.pdf
	Budget Book 11-29-24 draft
	Budget Book covers -2025.pdf





